
SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 16 September 2020

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

8 September 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8)

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

5. Declaration of Interests:- 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
 Other Interests

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

7. Covid-19 Pandemic - Reinstatement of Services and Economic Recovery. (Pages 9 
- 36)

8. Planning White Paper (Pages 37 - 62)

9. Work Programme (Pages 63 - 64)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:

 Chair’s Items
 Members’ Items

10. Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
The Chair to move:-

 “That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

Public Document Pack



public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated.”

11. Call-in of the Cabinet Decision in Relation to the Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria 
Business Park (Pages 65 - 88)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor R Ward (Chair) Councillor I Herdman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley
Councillor C Brady Councillor J Davies
Councillor B Emery Councillor K Flunder
Councillor A Hart Councillor N Hawkins
Councillor K Hoptroff Councillor L Page
Councillor H Plimley Councillor D Price
Councillor J Redfern Councillor P Roberts
Councillor J Salt Councillor H Sheldon MBE
Councillor I Whitehouse



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 22 JULY 2020
PRESENT: Councillor R Ward (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, C Brady, J Davies, B Emery, K Flunder, 
A Hart, N Hawkins, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, L Page, H Plimley, 
D Price, J Redfern, P Roberts, H Sheldon MBE and I Whitehouse

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors C Atkins, B Cawley, S Coleman, M Gledhill, T Holmes,
I Plant, S Ralphs MBE, P Routledge, L Swindlehurst and P Wood

APOLOGIES: Councillors J Salt

1 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Service Delivery Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel held on 29 January 2020 be APPROVED as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.

2 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN).

There were no urgent items of business.

3 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY.

Councillor Atkins substituted for Councillor Salt.

4 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:-

No declarations of interest were made.

5 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY.

Question from Councillor Hoptroff:

Q1. How are the Disabled Facility Grants being used to promote 
independent living at home for those with disabilities?

Response:

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s as commonly known) are used for 2 
primary purposes; for the funding of mandatory applications for adaptations 
to assist the applicant to remain living independently in their own home, and 
for funding discretionary schemes where the budget allows to help 
individuals with disabilities to move to more suitable accommodation or to Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

2

provide access for the wider disabled community facilities where no such 
provision currently exists.

To facilitate this, the Council work with other Staffordshire Authorities and 
the County Council, in partnership with our service provider Millbrook 
Healthcare, to ensure that our residents can access siitable care advice and 
where required obtain suitable funding for necessary adaptations to their 
home. The scheme is promoted through the District and County Councils, 
and directly by Millbrook Healthcare, to try and reach the widest possible 
groups of people.

Through the partnership, applicants can access a wide range of adaptations, 
from ramps and external alterations to level access showers, specialist 
toilets and baths, stair-lifts, through-floor lifts and even property extensions 
to accommodate their needs.

By way of supplementary questions, Cllr. Hoptroff asked whether the 
reported budget underspend of £540,000 was denying support to people in 
need and what action could be taken if so?

Cllr. Ralphs responded to say that the underspend was due to less claims 
than anticipated having been received and that it was for members to 
convey the message that applications were welcomed.

Question from Councillor Brady:

Q2. In view of the financial support Parkwood Community Leisure has 
received from SMDC during lockdown, what talks have been held with 
Parkwood to initiate outdoor fitness activities over the summer months 
and what activities are now being held to promote family physical 
wellbeing throughout the Staffordshire Moorlands?

Response:

Parkwood have undertaken some initial customer consultation via their 
Facebook pages to understand what level of interest there might be, 
following a positive response they are including plans for such sessions 
ready for the centres to re-open. Government and national governing body 
guidance must be fully considered when planning such activities to ensure 
the safety of participants.

With regards to other works promoting physical activity and sport, the 
Council has supported over 20 different community organisations, clubs and 
groups in the Moorlands during lockdown to access more than £200,000 
external funding to help them survive and plan for the future. We have also 
recently submitted further funding applications amounting to approximately 
£15,000 in partnership with 3 community organisations to offer additional 
support to them over the next 6 months. In addition, government guidance 
now enables sports to restart on 15 July and we are supporting clubs where 
possible to re-establish sessions where it is safe to do so.  

By way of supplementary questions, Cllr. Brady asked where the £182,000 
paid by SMDC to Parkwood Community Leisure between March and June 

Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

3

2020 gone to, and that specific plans were unclear. It was important not to 
waste the good weather in terms of outdoor exercise.

Cllr. Ralphs said that SMDC were helping Parkwood in the re-opening 
process. It was unclear what they can and can’t do. Extensive works had 
been done at all 3 sites during lockdown. A further detailed written response 
would be issued to all Panel members.

Question from Councillor Atkins:

Q3, Effective enforcement is important to maintain public confidence in the 
Planning Service. It is recommended that Planning Authorities should 
publish a Local Enforcement Plan. Do we have one and how can the 
public access it?

Response:

Yes, the Council does have an Enforcement Plan which was adopted by the 
Planning Applications Committee for a trial period. That period has now 
ended and we will be bringing a report back recommending formal adoption 
shortly. A copy of the plan can be obtained from the department. Once it has 
been permanently adopted it will be placed on the website.

By way of supplementary questions, Cllr. Atkins asked when adoption and 
subsequent publication was likely to take place?

Cllr. Ralphs advised that this would take place as soon as possible. 

Question from Councillor Atkins:

Q4. The Council have published a list of information required in planning 
applications and the NPPF requires decisions to be made as quickly as 
possible. If applicants are uncooperative and despite reminders fail to 
provide necessary details is it reasonable to take two years trying to 
determine an application for an unauthorised development that is 
causing environmental problems for neighbours?

Response:

Paragraph 38 of the NPPF advises that the LPA should work proactively with 
applicants to secure developments that improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area. Refusing an application for 
unauthorised development does not rectify the problem and whether it would 
be expedient to enforce would be a separate decision and may also not 
ultimately rectify the issue. It is generally regarded that working proactively 
with developers to regularise breaches is preferable to formal enforcement 
proceedings and achieves better outcomes in the long run.

By way of supplementary questions, Cllr. Atkins referred to ongoing 
problems at a specific application site.

Cllr. Ralphs advised that it was not appropriate to comment on an individual 
application, but would forward the query on for a written response to be 
issued. Page 5



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

4

6 COVID 19 - PANDEMIC REINSTATEMENT OF SERVICES AND ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY

Whilst some elements of the COVID-19 response continued to be ongoing, a 
recovery response was initiated so that services would be ready as lockdown 
restrictions began to be eased. Work therefore commenced on the planning of the 
Council’s recovery in late April 2020.

The report identified the impact of COVID-19 on service delivery and the plans that 
were being put into place for recovery.

DECIDED – That the Panel:-
 NOTED the details of the Council’s recovery from the COVID-19 

pandemic, and
 SUPPORTED the proposed recovery plans outlined.

7 CALL-IN OF CABINET DELEGATED DECISION - LEEK MARKET HALL 
UPDATE REPORT

The Delegated Decision report sought approval to undertake a feasibility study and 
business case to explore options for investment at Leek Market Hall – formally 
referred to as the Trestle Market – and provided details of the next steps to deliver 
improvements.

The Portfolio Holder’s decision was that progress on the project to date be noted and 
that officers commission the preparation of a fully costed feasibility study and 
business case for consideration.

Call-in requests were received from Councillors Gledhill, Atkins, Price, Cawley, 
Swindlehurst and Page, citing the following principles of decision:-

 Taking due regard of all relevant considerations;
 A presumption in favour of openness;
 Clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

Members debated the points raised both in the Delegated Decision report and the 
Call-in.

The matter was then put to a named vote as follows:-

In favour of the Call-in:
Councillors Atkins, Brady, Hawkins, Hoptroff, Page and Price (6)

Against the Call-in:
Councillors Aberley, Davies, Emery, Flunder, Hart, Herdman, Plimley, Redfern, 
Roberts, Sheldon and Ward (11)

Abstentions:
Councillor Whitehouse (1)

In accordance with the procedure for consideration of Call-ins at Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel meetings where the Call-in was not successful, the Cabinet were Page 6



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

5

asked to note or take account of concerns as it saw fit without holding up the 
implementation of the decision., 

8 WORK PROGRAMME

The Chair requested that the following items be added to the Work Programme:-

 Further COVID-19 pandemic update, with the opportunity for questions and 
debate; and

 Parkwood Leisure – crisis actions.

The meeting closed at 8.15 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel

16 September 2020

TITLE: COVID 19 - Pandemic Reinstatement of 
Services and Economic Recovery

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Alicia Patterson- Head of Environmental 
Health 
Sarah Porru - Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED: (All Wards);

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1 – COVID-19 Impact on Services and Associated Recovery Action
Appendix 2 - Summary of Town Centre Actions (including measures requested 
by Town Councils, Voluntary Organisations and Community Partners)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to identify the impact of COVID-19 on service delivery 
and note the plans that are being put in place for recovery.

2. Recommendations

2.1  It is recommended that the Service Delivery & Scrutiny Panel:

 Note the details of the Council’s recovery to the COVID-19 pandemic as 
outlined in the report

 Support the proposed recovery plans outlined in the report
 Identify any areas of activity which require further consideration 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Whilst some elements of the COVID-19 response continue to be ongoing, a 
recovery response was initiated so services would be ready as lockdown 
restrictions began to be eased. Work therefore commenced in the planning of 
the Council’s recovery in late April. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



3.2 The proposed response has been categorised into five work streams. These 
work streams are:  

 Reinstating services;
 Economic recovery;
 Community recovery;
 Financial recovery; and 
 Taking advantage of the positive legacy.

3.3 The purpose of this report is to consider the recovery process as it has been 
developing so far for the following work streams relative to this committee’s 
area of activity:

 Reinstatement of Services,
 Economic Recovery,

3.4 The report sets out the recovery work that has been undertaken to date and 
the planned work going forward. The Committee is encouraged to highlight 
any areas that require further consideration.

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependant upon effective 
delivery of services in line with the targets established in the Council’s 
performance framework.

4.2 Concerning the impact of COVID-19 on performance indicators, in a small 
number of cases, the effect has been positive, e.g. carbon emissions, social 
media activity.  The overall position, however, can be summarised as follows:

 Negative impact – 61%
 No Impact – 28%
 Positive impact – 11%

4.3 There will also be disruption to the individual actions committed in each of the 
service plans to deliver the priority actions set out in the Corporate Plan. 

4.4 It has been agreed to bring forward the annual review of the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Plan to begin in July.  The impact on service plan performance 
and priority actions will need to be understood in more detail alongside this to 
ensure that this review is effective.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage.

Page 10



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The Council has been and will continue to support agencies in ensuring 
compliance with social distancing regulations including the monitoring of 
parks and open spaces and housing complexes.

6.2 Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working 
arrangements for the Council’s employees.

The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working 
practices:

 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the 

additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g. 
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support 
for vulnerable people etc.

The Council has maintained and continues to maintain a good dialogue with 
staff representatives and trade unions and they have and continue to be 
supportive of the Councils approach.

The Council must now establish a recovery plan that ensures the safety of 
staff as we look to reinstate services.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

It is particularly important during the current crisis to ensure the 
safeguarding of our most vulnerable residents. It is also noted that the scope 
of vulnerabilities has widened from the usual cohort of individuals to include 
financial health/clinical and the impact of isolation, especially for those with 
care and support needs.  The Council cannot deliver such a comprehensive 
and flexible support package on its own.

A risk based approach has therefore been developed to balance the need to 
bolster the community and neighbourhood efforts and managing any risks to 
the individuals most at risk of their vulnerabilities being exploited.  This 
approach is aligned to and supported by the County Council and the NHS 
response.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) will need to be developed it identify 
specific implication for protected groups moving forward.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The crisis is having a significant financial impact on the Councils General 

6.4

Page 11



Fund. The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing 
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings 
targets that will not be met within the same timeframe due to resources 
being diverted else where.

Costs and reductions in income are being monitored and updated on an 
ongoing basis in line with a full financial risk assessment. Details of the 
potential impact have been presented in a separate report

The financial impact on the Councils General Fund in 2020/21 is currently 
predicted to be up to £2.3m – this will be continually reviewed via the 
quarterly review process.  This impact will be partially offset by emergency 
government funding of approximately £1,021,594.  Government have also 
announced a further funding package on 2nd July.  With this government 
support, it is anticipated that the financial effect on the current financial year 
will be able to be managed with the use of the Authorities contingency 
reserves.

The longer term financial impact will be reviewed via an early update of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan.

6.5 Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory 
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic. These are 
highlighted throughout the report.

16.6 Climate Change
The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of 
carbon reduction, including:

 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building 

closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.

It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of 
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on 
the climate change challenge.

Although there is a positive environmental impact on the borough due to 
reduced emissions, there has been an increase in environmental crime 
which the Council is continuing to monitor and enforce if necessary.

6.7 External Consultation
The implementation of the Council’s recovery plans will need to include 
extensive engagement with residents and communities.

The Council has consulted with and have agreed the Risk Assessments for 
staff returning to work with union representatives.

Page 12



6.8  Risk Assessment
The pandemic has resulted in an number of risks that need to be assessed 
and managed these include:

 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community 

support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to 

due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 

problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic 

support.

Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation 
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.

NEIL RODGERS
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Alicia Patterson -Head of Environmental 
Health,
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Sarah Porru - Head of Regeneration
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 13



7 Introduction & Background

7.1 At its meeting held on 16th June the Cabinet considered a report which 
detailed the Council’s response to COVID-19 and provided an initial outline of 
the plans that are being put in place for recovery.

7.2 Whilst some elements of the COVID-19 response continue to be ongoing, a 
recovery response was also needed as lockdown restrictions began to be 
eased. Work therefore commenced in the planning of the Council’s recovery in 
late April. 

7.3 The proposed response has been categorised into five work streams. These 
work streams are:  

 Reinstating services;
 Economic recovery;
 Community recovery;
 Financial recovery; and 
 Taking advantage of the positive legacy.

7.4 The recovery process will need to be a significant focus for the Council in both 
the short and longer term. A large amount of decision-making will 
consequently flow from this. The Cabinet will regularly need to consider both 
changes in and the implementation of policy to address the impact on 
residents and communities. Similarly the work programmes for the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels need to reflect the recovery and involve the 
engagement of all councillors in this significant programme of work. 

7.5 As a starting point it is was agreed that each of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels receive a report on each of the work streams that are relative to their 
area of business at the first cycle of meetings that follow the reintroduction of 
meetings.

7.6 The purpose of this report is to consider the recovery process for the following 
work streams relative to this committee’s area of activity:

 Reinstatement of Services
 Economic Recovery

8 Reinstating Services  

8.1 The key issues that were initially identified for this work stream are set out 
below: 

 Re-establishing a baseline of current service provision;
 Planning for re-providing services that have been stopped during the 

lockdown; 
 Planning for a relaxed but continuing lockdown;
 Dealing with backlogs of work e.g. food safety inspections; 

Page 14



 Planning for increased service demands e.g. housing benefits;
 Planning for new service demands;
 Restarting projects after the enforced delays; and
 Rehousing homelessness clients

Impact of COVID-19 on Service Delivery

8.2 This work has involved all Heads of Service and has been structured by them 
all identifying the following: 

 Detail of the service activity or projects that have been affected as a result 
of COVID-19,

 The impact on the service/project e.g. full service suspension, delay in 
delivery,

 The risks to the Council should the service/project not return to normal 
promptly,

 Any anticipated backlog of work as a result of returning to normal e.g. 
applications to process, visits to make,

 Provisions that are in place to deal with expected increase in demand or 
backlog when services can restart,

 Additional resources or work arounds that will be required to deal with a 
return to normality, the increased demand or backlog during recovery.

8.3 The report to Executive set out the impact of the response to COVID-19 on the 
Council’s services. The Council has also supported a number of new functions 
that have been required as a result of the national response to the pandemic.

8.4 Services are to be reintroduced gradually in line with national guidance and 
this process has already commenced.

8.5 Heads of Service have also completed risk assessments for the return of 
services. In reinstating services the Council has reiterated its commitment to 
work safely in a statement outlining the five steps that have been undertaken 
to ensure safer working, which will be promoted and displayed in Council 
buildings. The steps are:

 We have carried out COVID-19 risk assessments and shared the results 
with the people who work here.

 We have cleaning, handwashing and hygiene procedures in line with 
guidance.

 We have taken all reasonable steps to help people work from home.
 We have taken all reasonable steps to maintain a 2m distance in the 

workplace.
 Where people cannot be 2m apart, we have done everything practical 

to manage transmission risk.

8.6 The impact on each of the Councils’ services is summarised in Appendix 1. 
The additional service functions are also detailed along with the recovery work 
that has already commenced.

Page 15



Key Recovery Work

8.7 The Council supported the multi-agency work that was necessary for the re-
opening of town centres on 15th June. This work included:

 The development of re-opening plans for each of our towns including Leek, 
Biddulph and Cheadle - this has involved significant input from the county 
council with their highways responsibilities – these are still a work in 
progress and finalisation of them will include consultation with ward 
members.  

 Planning for the re-opening of public conveniences and markets,
 Developing measures to ensure that our car parks operate safely,
 Discussions with the town and parish councils to include their input,
 Discussions with other stakeholders.

8.8 Managers have worked very closely with Parkwood Leisure with regards to the 
re-opening / recovery plans for the leisure centres. The Government originally 
advised Active UK (the organisation that represents the leisure industry 
nationally) that leisure centres - gyms (not pools) should prepare to re-open on 
the 4th July. However Government later confirmed a revised reopening date of 
the 25th July, this is when our facilities reopened, with pools opening a week 
later on the 1st August. 

8.9 An agreement on support for Parkwood has been agreed by the Council. On 
the 24th July 2020, the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports, considered and 
approved a report with regards to an ongoing financial package to aid the re-
opening of the Council’s leisure facilities. Inevitably as a result of anticipated 
reductions in footfall, Parkwood will be reviewing their operational 
arrangements, including staffing.

8.10 All member meetings are now being re-established on a virtual platform, the 
Cabinet, Planning and Overview and Scrutiny Panel meetings have now all 
recommenced on a virtual basis.

8.11 There has been significant progress with planning for the opening offices and 
receptions. Work is well progressed to ensure all buildings are COVID secure 
this includes signage, screens etc.

8.12 Playgrounds, outdoor gyms and outdoor sports facilities reopened on the 4th 
July, following confirmation by Government that such facilities were safe to 
reopen and the installation of signage, and a full safety inspection of each site 
and equipment.

8.13 The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a number of significant changes to 
the way the workforce delivers services. Additional requirements for PPE have 
been assessed and actioned. There will be a backlog of annual leave to be 
taken as some holidays have been cancelled during the pandemic.

8.14 As more businesses have now reopened since July 4th, the Authority is 
working hard with its partner agencies to ensure that business and residents 
remain safe and that all the government advise in relation to social distancing 

Page 16



and track and trace are being adhered to.  Enforcement visits have been made 
to establishments across the district to ensure that businesses are supported 
and understand the legislation and their role in ensuring business can remain 
open and safe. 

8.15 Businesses that have reopened now  include:

 Pubs, bars, cafes, restaurants,
 Hairdressers and barbers,
 Holiday accommodation such as hotels, hostels, bed and breakfast 

accommodation, holiday apartments or homes, cottages or bungalows, 
ampsites, caravan parks or boarding houses. However shared sleeping 
spaces (i.e. dormitory rooms) should not open to any groups, except those 
travelling within the current government guidance on social mixing outside 
of household groups,

 Some leisure facilities and tourist attractions – this includes outdoor gyms 
and playgrounds, cinemas, museums, galleries, theme parks, arcades and 
bingo halls,

 Libraries, social clubs, places of worship and community centres.

8.16 The Council’s communications effort has been stepped up to make residents 
and potential visitors aware of the situation. The Council has attempted where 
possible to have details of the shops and businesses that are open and details 
of opening times. The communications messages continue to stress the 
national narrative about the requirements of social distancing in line with 
national messaging.

Pavement Licences 

8.17 The new process is now in place and allows the Authority to introduce  a 
streamlined and cheaper route for businesses such as cafes, restaurants and 
bars to secure a licence to place furniture on the highway. This will support 
them to operate safely while social distancing measures remain in place. This 
will provide much needed income over the summer months and protect as 
many hospitality jobs as possible.

8.18 Business which currently use (or proposes to use) premises for the sale of 
food or drink for consumption (on or off the premises) can apply for a licence. 
Businesses that are eligible include: public houses, cafes, bars, restaurants, 
snack bars, coffee shops, and ice cream parlours.

8.19 A licence permits the business to use furniture placed on the highway to sell or 
serve food or drink and/or allow it to be used by people for consumption of 
food or drink supplied from, or in connection with the use of the premises.

8.20 If the local authority does not determine the application before the end of the 
determination period (which is 5 working days beginning with the first day after 
the public consultation period (excluding public holidays), the licence is 
deemed to have been granted for a year (but not beyond 30 September 2021) 

Page 17



and the business can place the proposed furniture such as tables and chairs 
within the area set out in the application for the purpose or purposes proposed

8.21 The Authority has received 3 formal applications to date, 1 of which has been 
issued and 2 further applications are currently pending. 

Test & Trace 

8.22 The Food Safety Team continues to support Staffordshire County Council and 
Public Health England in accordance with the funding received  work is 
continuing within the district in relation to developing and tailoring outbreak 
control plans, .

8.23 Work plans are in progress, and these plans are focusing on identifying and 
containing potential outbreaks in places such as workplaces, housing 
complexes, care homes and schools, this work is ongoing, a small number of 
isolated cases have been reported across the Moorlands however numbers 
are being monitored

8.24 As part of this work, local authorities will also need to ensure testing capacity 
is deployed effectively to high-risk locations. Local authorities will work closely 
with the test and trace service, local NHS, PHE, County and other partners to 
achieve this.

8.25 Data on the virus’s spread will be shared with local authorities through the 
Joint Biosecurity Centre to inform local outbreak planning, so teams 
understand how the virus is moving, working with national government where 
necessary to access the testing and tracing capabilities of the new service.

8.26 Local communities, organisations and individuals will also be encouraged to 
follow government guidance and assist those self-isolating in their area who 
need help. This will include encouraging neighbours to offer support and 
identifying and working with relevant community groups.

Planning System Changes 

8.27 The Government recently announced the new Planning Bill which is making its 
way through parliament. It includes a number of measures including:

 Automatic extensions of planning permissions due to expire to 1st April 
2021;

 Speeding up planning appeals by allowing the Planning Inspectorate to 
use more than one procedure; 

 A fast track route for developers to apply to the planning authority to 
amend conditions or approved documents setting out restrictions on 
construction working hours. The temporary amendments expire on a date 
set by the planning authority no later than 1 April 2021.

8.28 The extension of planning permissions is to be welcomed and will be 
beneficial for our housing land supply. It is not anticipated that any of the 

Page 18



changes will have any significant implications for the way that the Council 
operates its planning functions. Some minor changes and new processes will 
be required for the fast track condition amendments but these can easily be 
accommodated within existing functions and no significant resource 
implications are anticipated. 

Service Backlogs and Proposed Action

8.29 Food safety - There is a current backlog of 150 routine inspections and 40 new 
business inspections that have built up during the lockdown. Officers are now 
fully operational again with appropriate PPE,  additional officer capacity will be 
required to clear the backlog of inspections. . 

8.30 Planning applications – Now that the virtual meeting process has been 
implemented, the normal cycle of planning meetings will be reintroduced which 
will provide for more regular processing of applications. The new 
arrangements will need to be considered in more detail to consider whether 
changes need to be made to reduce the length of agendas and the possibility 
of some additional meetings may need to be considered.

9. Detail - National Economic Impact

9.1 UK monthly gross domestic product (GDP) fell by 20.4% in April 2020 (the 
largest fall since the series began in 1997) This decline is three times greater 
than the fall experienced during the 2008 to 2009 economic downturn. (ONS)

9.2 Looking beyond the second quarter, the UK is predicted to see a decline in 
gross domestic product of up to 14% during 2020. Percentage-wise food, drink 
and accommodation is likely to see the greatest decline in economic output 
whilst, the greatest monetary decline is predicted to be in manufacturing  and 
construction and retail/wholesale. Longer term there is consensus that the UK 
economy will return to growth in 2021, although there is uncertainty over the 
pace and the scale of this.  

 
9.3 The impact on our High Streets is also significant.COVID-19 has led to a 

substantial reduction in consumption, the largest component of the UK 
economy. Retail sales were 23% lower in April than in February. Social 
consumption (e.g. spending on restaurants, travel and entertainment), typically 
worth around a fifth of total consumption, had fallen by around 80% at its 
lowest point. The Grimsey Report Review 2020 suggests that 47% of retailers 
are at significant risk of failure with 59% of pub and club operators at 
significant risk of failure. Between 2014 and 2018, the UK had already seen a 
42% drop in retail property investment and at the outbreak of the COVID19 
crisis 52% (71,163) of retail and hospitality businesses were at serious risk of 
failure 

9.4 The Corona virus pandemic is likely to accelerate this decline. The Grimsey 
Report Review predicts that, notwithstanding business failures, there will be a 
massive cull of outlets. Retail experts at KPMG previously expected high 

Page 19



street retail space to shrink by 25 per cent by 2025, but now see that 
happening by 2022-23. Online retailing, they believe, could reach 50 per cent 
of the UK total by 2025 — five years earlier than previously anticipated. 

9.5 The hospitality sector is amongst the highest employing sector in the UK, with 
over 2.4 million workers in hospitality, accommodation and attractions, 
equivalent to 8% of the entire UK workforce. They have also been among the 
hardest hit by the pandemic and necessary restrictions. Whilst restaurants and 
food and drink began to re-open on 4th July, The restaurant guide, Harden’s 
predicts that no more than 70% of hospitality sites will go back into operation 
following COVID19. 

9.6 The housing market has been severely affected by the pandemic, with activity 
and construction both slowing sharply. Estimates suggest that UK residential 
transactions in May 2020 were nearly 50% lower than in May 2019.According 
to Nationwide, UK house prices fell in the year to June 2020 for the first time in 
almost 8 years. The construction industry experienced a strong decline in 
output of 40.1% during April 2020. This is the largest fall since monthly records 
began in January 2010. The coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic had a 
significant and broad-based negative impact on construction output during 
April 2020. (ONS) 

9.7 The services industries were most heavily impacted by social distancing, for 
example, travel and tour operators, accommodation and food and beverage 
services. Of the 50 services industries sectors, (growth fell by) 40 fell by 10% 
or more, 27 by more than 20% and 8 more than 50%.(ONS)

9.8 As lockdown is eased, the focus for the government’s economic and fiscal 
strategy is now on ensuring that it continues to support workers and 
businesses as the UK recovers from the COVID-19 pandemic. The range of 
measures outlined in the Government’s Summer Economic update (8th July 
2020) now aim to support to support employment through the recovery period 
and initiatives such as the kickstart scheme, ‘Eat out to help out’ and 
infrastructure investment packages will help support the recovery of public 
services, businesses, and workers.

  

10. Local Economic Impact

10.1 The Office for Budget Responsibility predicts that certain sectors faced a loss 
of income of more than 50% from April to June, including accommodation and 
food services, construction and manufacturing – sectors that are extremely 
significant to Staffordshire Moorlands economy.    

10.2 This impact is reflected in a comparison of UK districts where Staffordshire 
Moorlands is identified in the top 50 local authorities across the country likely 
to see the biggest reduction in economic output in quarter two. Staffordshire 
Moorlands is ranked 47th on the list and is estimated to see a 42% decline in 
quarter two. 

Page 20



10.3 Recent analysis by Staffordshire Chamber of Commerce shows that the 
biggest impact on businesses has been a reduced cash flow or reduction in 
cash reserves. Many have reduced staff hours to manage the reduction in 
trade or furloughed staff. A large number of Staffordshire Moorlands 
businesses have made use of the job retention scheme and have said this has 
been ‘very useful’ 

10.4 In Staffordshire, it is already clear that coronavirus is leading to a loss of jobs 
in some workplaces, and a hold on recruitment and apprenticeship places. 
The multi agency County Redundancy Task Group is in regular contact with 
13 Staffordshire businesses (including JCB) who have already announced, or 
are facing redundancies with the sector mainly affected being manufacturing..  

10.5 Workers in the sectors most affected, including hospitality and retail, are more 
likely to be low paid, younger and female. Younger households are also likely 
to be disproportionately hit in the longer term, as evidence suggests that, 
following recessions, lost future earnings potential is greater for young people.

 10.6 This has been recognised in the recently announced national Kickstart 
Scheme aimed at those aged 16-24 who are on Universal Credit and are 
deemed to be at risk of long-term unemployment as well as the pledge to 
provide high quality traineeships for young people and provide further 
payments for employers who hire new apprentices. At a local level, The 
County Redundancy Task Group are also increasing training provision for 
people facing redundancy with a particular focus on those aged 18-24 year 
olds

10.7 The number of people claiming Jobseeker's Allowance and similar benefits in 
the Staffordshire Moorlands has increased by 50 per cent compared to last 
year. Approximately 2,270 people were making claims in the district in May 
2020 - an increase of 760 from 1,510 this time in 2019. The increase means 
3.9 per cent of people in the Staffordshire Moorlands aged between 16 and 64 
are making claims - up from 2.6 per cent in May last year

10.8 Research shows that people’s willingness to return to town centres and tourist 
destinations is tempered with concern about the ability to manage crowds and 
nervousness about a second wave of infection. The percentage of adults in 
Great Britain worried about the effect of the coronavirus (COVID-19) on their 
life was 64% between 18 and 21 June 2020 (ONS). This is acknowledged by 
businesses who want more guidance of what is safe and what do they need to 
do.

11. Staffordshire Moorlands Emergency Response
 
11.1 Strong partnership working will be essential to successful recovery and there 

is obvious potential to build on the existing delivery networks that are in place 
to ensure joint working continues and duplication of effort is avoided. Officers 
meet regularly with Staffordshire County Council and Staffordshire Districts to 
share information, develop regional recovery plans and understand the impact 
of COVID19 across all sectors.  

Page 21



11.2 The initial focus of the recovery team has been to implement emergency or 
short term measures to support businesses, town centre retailers and market 
traders, and to manage movement in our town centres. SMDC have also been 
working with SCC to support new, innovative ways of working - permitting take 
away delivery or the use of public space for trading. 

11.3 As part of the emergency response, Town Councils, along with local 
community organisations, were asked to identify any areas of concern within 
their town centres. These were then shared with SCC Highways and actioned 
as appropriate. Any medium or long term measures have been included in the 
Regeneration Recovery Strategy. A full list of the suggested actions is 
contained at Appendix 2. 

11.4 Short term temporary measures have included the following actions: 

 Work with County Council & Town Councils to implement and promote any 
relaxation of planning restrictions that limit where food and drink can be 
served/consumed

 Reopen car parks and toilets allowing for social distancing and additional 
cleaning regimes. 

 Work with partners to deliver temporary town centre measures outlined at 
Appendix 1 

 Consider changes to layout of markets and additional signage to maintain 
social distancing -sharing NABMA guidance

 Provide a range of online guidance and advice on safe working practices 
for businesses

12. Regeneration Recovery Strategy

12.1 Economic recovery will take place over an extended period of time and will 
require agreed programmes of work for long term renewal, supported by 
partners and stakeholders. The Regeneration Recovery Strategy considers 
measures to ensure long term regeneration, routes for delivery and funding 
opportunities across the following areas:

 Housing Delivery
 Employment& Business Growth
 Tourism
 Town Centres
 Markets
 Climate Change   

13. Housing Delivery – Key actions 

 Develop ongoing dialogue with land owners, developers and registered 
providers to understand sector confidence and activity at a local level. 

Page 22



 Continue to work closely with Homes England to feed back local 
knowledge and the impact on local programmes 

 Work with Homes England to identify opportunities for investment (i.e. 
Cornhill)

 Develop AHDP for sites following adoption of SM Local Plan 
 Consider next steps to in delivery of Wharf Road and Tunstall Road 

Masterplans 
 Ongoing support for the development of Neighbourhood Plans 

13.1 While the immediate feeling across the housing market might be one of 
uncertainty, there was a huge amount of investment in the sector prior to the 
outbreak. The imbalance between the supply and demand in the UK’s housing 
stock remains and, in the longer term, housing, construction and infrastructure 
development remain high on the political agenda with recent announcements 
including support for new affordable Homes and a short-term home building 
fund extension to support small- and medium-sized housebuilders that are 
unable to access private finance. In addition, the government introduced new 
legislation in summer 2020 to make it easier to convert buildings for different 
uses, including housing, without the need for planning permission. 

13.2 There is an opportunity for the Council to benefit from the above schemes and 
build on our positive relationships with developers and Registered Providers in 
our areas to maximise investment in the district on private development sites. 
The increase in people being able to work from home may also lead to rural 
areas becoming more desirable places to live. Demand for homes in areas 
that promote health and wellbeing could increase the popularity of 
Staffordshire Moorlands towns even further offering green, sustainable, 
walkable places with local shops and amenities.

14. Employment & Business Growth -Key actions

 Work to ensure grant funding support to all eligible SM businesses
 Encourage regular dialogue with key employers and businesses.    
 Agree process of signposting, referral and feedback with partner 

organisations promoting the recently announced Kickstart and 
apprenticeship schemes

 Support the work of the Countywide Redundancy Task Group.
 Work closely with partners to ensure effective communications to business 

and share local intelligence with partner agencies. 
 Lobby for improved digital infrastructure to support business

14.1 Over recent months the Government has developed a number of schemes to 
provide funding support to employers and the self-employed in the form of 
loans, tax relief and cash grants The Council supported 1, 825 Staffordshire 
Moorlands businesses through the small business and retail grant scheme, 
totalling £20,620,000 It is estimated that 91% of eligible Staffordshire 
Moorlands businesses received a grant through this scheme. In addition, the 
Council managed the delivery of the Staffordshire Moorlands discretionary 
grant scheme. At this time 111 discretionary grants have been paid totalling 

Page 23



£680,000. A further 45 applications are currently being assessed and if 
approved will total a further £203,500 of payments 

14.2 A large number of businesses have also benefitted from the Self-Employment 
Income Support Scheme (SEISS). A second and final payment is now 
available to eligible applicants whose businesses have been adversely 
affected by COVID-19. This is worth 70% of their average monthly trading 
profits, paid in another single instalment covering three months’ worth of 
profits (Aug-Oct), capped at £6,570

14.3 Staffordshire Moorlands has a large number of manufacturing businesses, 
many of whom are key employers in the district. Thankfully, recent liaison with 
our key employers shows that the majority of manufacturers in HP continued 
to operate during the crisis (albeit at a reduced capacity) 

14.4 However, rising unemployment is a major concern for our key businesses.  
Changes to the job retention scheme from September 2020 mean employers 
will be expected to contribute to payments for furloughed staff. Partners 
anticipate an upturn in unemployment following this change with a further rise 
expected when the scheme ends on 31st October. Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Growth Hub and Chambers of Commerce are considering how to 
respond to this and anticipate a focus shift from support for long term 
unemployed to assisting with getting skilled unemployed back to work. Local 
authorities have been asked to assist with signposting to local and national 
provision.

14.5 In May announced a Redundancy and Recruitment Triage Service for 
businesses and employees experiencing redundancies as a result of the 
coronavirus, The service is delivered by the National Careers Service West 
Midlands including Staffordshire and aims to match those recently made 
redundant with new work in sectors currently experiencing growth. The service 
will also engage with employers facing redundancies to ensure a smooth 
transition for employees into new work

14.6 In addition, Staffordshire County Council launched the Staffordshire Start-up 
Programme aiming to build on and complement existing support for new 
businesses, with a focus on helping them to be robust in overcoming future 
challenges. The aim is to aid the creation of 200 start-up business in key 
sectors in Staffordshire each year, with the programme set out over three 
years. 

14.7 Nationally, the job retention bonus will introduce a one-off payment of £1,000 
to UK employers for every furloughed employee who remains continuously 
employed through to the end of January 2021. The government will also 
provide investment to drive forward delivery of local infrastructure projects, 
creating local growth and jobs. This could include the development and 
regeneration of key regeneration sites in Staffordshire Moorlands and 
investment to improve transport and digital connectivity.

 
14.8 It is yet to be seen what the impact of increased home working will have on the 

demand for office space in the Moorlands. For some businesses, social 

Page 24



distancing measures may lead to an need for additional space; whilst others 
may continue to adopt more flexible work patterns, encouraging work from 
home arrangements, leading to existing provision becoming redundant. 

14.7 Going forward, it will be important to build close relationships with our key 
employers, to understand their needs and plans for recovery.  This intelligence 
along with an ‘open for business’ message can then be used support growth 
and help bring forward employment sites identified in the Staffordshire 
Moorlands Local Plan.

 
15. Tourism – Key Actions

 Encourage take up of discretionary grant to eligible tourism businesses 
 Promotion of DMO marketing campaigns to tourism business and residents 

to support ‘holiday at home’ message.
 Promote take up of ‘stay safe’ charter mark amongst SM businesses. 
 Work to implement and promote any relaxation of planning restrictions that 

limit the season under which some organisations to operate
 Identify SM businesses with limited season permissions.
 Promotion of cycling and local transport networks to reduce car use.

15.1 Visit England and Visit Britain are working with a number of industry bodies to 
promote the ‘We’re Good to Go’ Campaign – a UK wide industry standard and 
charter mark for businesses to build consumer confidence. This allows 
businesses to demonstrate that they are adhering to the respective 
Government and public health guidance, have carried out a COVID-19 risk 
assessment and have the required processes in place. This has been 
promoted to all tourism businesses in Staffordshire Moorlands in partnership 
with Destination Staffordshire. 

15.2 The reduction of overseas travel and a trend in Staycations is an opportunity 
to boost tourism in the Staffordshire Moorlands. In partnership with Destination 
Staffordshire we are currently running a marketing campaign (Time to Enjoy 
Staffs Safely). This is a follow on from the 'Safe Shopping' campaigns run 
through the Growth Hub. We aim to target visitors within an hour drive away 
from the Staffordshire Moorlands, with the aim of encouraging visitors back for 
the day, maybe staying overnight.  This campaign will cover a 4 week period 
of radio and digital activity.

15.3 Destination Staffordshire have also held a series of webinars for tourism 
businesses and recently conducted a survey of tourism businesses to 
measure the impact of COVID19 on the tourism sector across Staffordshire. 
The results of this survey are due shortly and will be used to shape future 
support and campaigns.

16. Town Centres – Key actions

 Consider development of trader networks - bespoke ‘totally locally’/’love 
where you live’ projects for each town 

 Training packages to include digital trading options and resilience planning

Page 25



 Delivery of Cheadle High Street Task Force project to kick start recovery 
 Delivery of Cheadle Town Centre options appraisal project as part of long 

term funding package
 Work with community partners and stakeholders to design and deliver local 

town centre recovery programmes 

16.1 Small towns are expected to recover faster than large cities and towns with a 
greater number of independent traders are likely to be more resilient. This is 
good news for towns in Staffordshire Moorlands, many of which have a high 
number of independent traders. Recovery will depend on building more local 
capacity for action, making the most of increased support for local suppliers 
and businesses, and developing effective mechanisms for coordinating this. 

16.2 Delivery of Cheadle High Street Task Force initiative and the Cheadle Town 
Centre options appraisal will offer additional critical support to Cheadle 
retailers and help to transform the town centre by diversifying the high street 
offer. Whilst delivery of bespoke trader support packages and ‘shop local’ type 
schemes across all towns will help build local capacity and encourage people 
to return to the town centre in the short to medium term.  

16.3 It is recognised that engagement with local partners and stakeholders will be 
key to delivery of the town centre recovery programmes. Many town councils, 
community and voluntary organisations are already delivering local support 
packages and have worked closely with the Council to implement temporary 
measures to allow town centres to open safely. This engagement and 
collaboration should be continued and built upon to ensure customers feel 
confident returning to town centres and local businesses can thrive. 

16.4 A process for engagement with the three town councils in respect of the 
recovery arrangements in the Staffordshire Moorlands town centres has 
recently been established. The Leader of the Council has opened a direct 
dialogue with each of the town mayors and deputy mayors and has 
established a forum to consider the issues and responses moving forward. 
The make up of this forum is as follows:

 Leader – Cllr Ralphs
 Portfolio Holder for Communities – Cllr Bowen
 Portfolio Holder for Planning & Property – Cllr Wain
 Mayor and Deputy Mayor – Biddulph Town Council
 Mayor and Deputy Mayor – Cheadle Town Council
 Mayor and Deputy Mayor – Leek Town Council
 Cllr Deaville – representing Staffordshire County Council

16.5 The scope of discussion within the forum is as follows:

 The ongoing town centre management response to COVID-19 recovery
 The recovery focus for the town centres
 The actions required to support traders and other businesses with 

sustained recovery
 The strategy for parking on other town centre support services

Page 26



 Supporting the visitor economy  

16.6 An early action in response to requests from the town mayors is the 
introduction of free parking on all SMDC car parks during August. 

16.7 The wider considerations of the forum will be developed in more detail with a 
view to developing a comprehensive and focused action plan.

 17. Markets - Key Actions

 Consider changes to layout of markets to maintain social distancing -
sharing NABMA guidance

 Support Market Traders through the sharing of good practice, information 
and advice through NABMA and NMTF communication channels

 Support traders to implement delivery services, click and collect and to 
implementing social distancing measures

 Deliver options appraisal for refurbishment of Leek Market Hall
 Review marketing and events programmes and Leek Markets
 Work to support promotion of safe trading at Biddulph Market and share 

good practise 
 Review Market Trader training programme proposals

17.1 Indoor and Outdoor markets in Staffordshire Moorlands closed on 24th March 
in line with Government lockdown measures. The Council suspended the 
collection of all rents during the close down. Leek outdoor market reopened on 
the 14th July, the Butter Market on the 17th July and Leek Market Hall on 26th 
July. The market at Greyhound Walk in Cheadle reopened on Friday 19th 
June. The majority of the traders at all markets have now returned and any 
fees for June have been waived. 

17.2 A recent NABMA survey suggests traders immediate asks are for marketing  
and promotion (including the use of social media) along with start up business 
advice and training for existing traders to present a modern market 
environment, complementing the town centre offer. Whilst large footfall 
generating events will be one of the last things to come back on stream, we 
need to develop marketing and event plans for market to give confidence and 
encouragement to customers to return. Planned investment in Leek Market 
Hall will help reassure traders and customers that markets remain a priority for 
delivery and investment.

18. Climate Change – Key actions

 Completion of the Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan with Staffordshire 
Wildlife Trust

 Promote Green Infrastructure delivery to support safe walking and cycling 
for short journeys

 Develop Green Infrastructure delivery proposals that support people’s 
journey to work on foot or by bicycle

Page 27



 Work with developers to bring forward schemes that facilitate access to 
green spaces and the surrounding countryside

 Consider opportunities for enhancing open spaces as part of town centre 
recovery programmes

 Work with partners to support the development of a public electric vehicle 
charging network

18.1 The pandemic has prompted a wave of critical reflection with issues of 
sustainability and longer term consumer behaviour being considered in greater 
depth. The issue of clean growth is likely to return to prominence and there are 
likely to be more demands for our high streets, town and city centres to be 
better places – safer to walk, with better air to breath, with more community 
uses and local businesses and more opportunities for local employment. 

18.2 A recent poll suggested 85% of people want some personal and social 
changes to continue after lockdown with many people wanting to make greater 
use of local centres and green spaces. Delivery of the green infrastructure 
plan will help ensure future developments in Staffordshire Moorlands 
recognise this and ensure greater connectivity. This is supported by the new 
green Jobs Challenge Fund for environmental charities and public authorities 
to create and protect 5,000 jobs in England. The jobs will involve improving the 
natural environment, including planting trees, restoring habitats, clearing 
waterways, and creating green space for people and wildlife.

Page 28



APPENDIX 1
COVID-19 Impact on Services and Associated Recovery Action

Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
HR  Recruitment suspended

 Training suspended
 Staff Appraisals / PEPs postponed

 Set up and co-ordinate staff testing for C19
 Assess all workforce for vulnerability to C19  

and make provisions for ongoing safety of all 
staff

 Liaison and agreement with Unions for all 
changes to working practices

 Postpone/rearrange all planned training
 Co-ordinate the Council participation with the 

LRF

 Working with Recovery Group to ensure safe 
return 

 Advertisement of vacancies internally 
recommenced

ICT  ICT projects delayed
 Mobile phone upgrades postponed

 Set up and roll out homeworking provision for 
all staff

 Set up and roll out provisions for contact 
centre to operate remotely

 Investigation and implementation of virtual 
meeting capability

 Re-commenced office 365 and windows 10 
project

Communications  Significantly Increased communication activity  Participation in LRF work streams  A communications plan has  been developed 
as part of the recovery phase.

OD & Transformation

Performance  C19 Impact on performance  Monitor and report  the Impact on 
performance

 Process to revisit targets and project delivery 
has commenced

 Audit  2020/21 Audit Plan delayed
 Recommendations follow-up suspended
 Annual Governance Statement delayed 

 Business grants monitoring/checking  Revised plan to be agreed
 Follow up of recommendations has now 

commenced

Communities Community Safety  CCTV cameras upgrade and monitoring station 
upgrade delayed

 Anti social behaviour response
 Partnerships and planned projects delayed
 Environmental enforcement and  

investigations limited

 Risk assessments in progress and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations again on 
routine  Enforcement Duties  by the end of 
July

P
age 29



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Democratic Services  Member meetings postponed  Investigation and implementation of virtual 

meeting capability
 Support Councillors to access and use TEAMS 

for virtual meetings

 Virtual meetings implemented

Community Support  Support to vulnerable people  Continue to support the communities
Legal Elections  Elections postponed  Virtual meeting capability

 Support given to other service areas (benefits)
 Canvas to commence

Food Safety
Pollution
Housing disrepair

 Restrictions on compliance visits
 Suspension of inspections/monitoring

 New requirements under the emergency 
legislation in particular around enforced 
closures.

 Increased Multi-agency working

 Risk assessments updated and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations for routine 
inspections and enforcement  by Mid  July

Licensing  Full suspension of enforcement visits and 
multi agency visits

 Pavement Licences  Risk assessments updated and awaiting the 
final sign off by unions and insurance 
company.

 PPE sourced and levels of protection agreed 
commensurate with role and duties required

 Individual risk assessments in progress for our 
clinical and vulnerable staff 

 Expected to be fully operations for routine 
enforcement by Mid  July

Environmental Health

Land Charges  Dramatic reduction in local searches received  Additional Planning updates and data cleansing  The Service is operational however service 
demands have reduced considerably due to 
the property market issues, however we are 
now seeing the market recover slowly.

 Personal Searches will resume once the 
Reception Points reopen – End July/Aug  

Service Commissioning Leisure  Leisure centres were closed in late March.
 Financial support provided to leisure centre 

provider Parkwood 
 Playgrounds closed,

 All leisure centres remain closed as Gov’t has 
not yet permitted their reopening. Reopening 
plans have been produced by Parkwood but 
until Gov’t announce a reopening date these 
can’t be enacted. The financial support 
currently being provided to Parkwood is 
insufficient to cover a reopening of all the SM 
sites. A report is being produced for members 
to enable the plans/options to be considered.

 Playgrounds, outdoor gyms and outdoor 
sports facilities will all reopen on the 4th July, 
following the installation of signage, and a full 

P
age 30



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
safety inspection of each site and equipment.

 Installation of a new play facility at Whitfield 
is due to start in mid July ( and will take 2 
weeks to complete), this project was due to 
be delivered at Easter but delayed due to C19.

Waste collection, Street 
Cleansing & Grounds 
Maintenance

 Capacity reduced on street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance to support waste 
collection 

 Increase in fly-tipping  Increase in fly tipping 
 Waste and recycling services are all operating 

normally. Staff from other services are no 
longer being used to supplement crews. We 
are continuing to see higher than normal 
tonnages of recyclables presented for 
collection – averaging +26% higher than 
normal at this time of year. 

 Street cleansing – we are still seeing higher 
than normal volumes fly tipping despite the 
reopening of HWRC’s. Litter levels is 
problematic in our parks and open spaces and 
higher than normal.

 Grounds maintenance functions are all 
operating normally.

Cemeteries  Services are operating as normal. We have 
seen no increases in demand.

Business Support  Additional support required by local 
businesses 

 Implementation of Local Discretionary Business 
Grant scheme which will involve distributing a 
further £1.2m of financial support to eligible 
businesses.

 Work with partners to re open the town 
centres

Regeneration

Markets  Indoor and outdoor markets have remained 
closed during the lockdown period.

 Safe re-opening of markets – signage, 
cleaning materials, information to traders. 

Public Conveniences  Public toilets across the borough closed  Additional requirement s for cleaning
 Additional alteration works may be required

 Phased reintroduction from 15th June

Commercial Properties  The Council has been engaging with its 
commercial tenants on a one to one basis to 
provide support based on the individual 
circumstances of the businesses. 

 Payment plans will be agreed with tenants for 
any arrears that have built up to support 
tenants.

Assets

Car Parks  The arrangements in the Council’s car parks 
have been maintained strictly in line with the 
British Parking Association guidance.. 

 The Council has recognised the national permit 
scheme for health and care workers and have 
also extended it locally 

 Enforcement is ongoing. 
 Parking machines are being routinely 

sanitised and signage erected.

P
age 31



Service Function Service Impact Additional Functions Recovery Action
Capital Works  Capital projects postponed  Works brought forward where buildings have 

been closed.
 Capital programme being re-prioritised due to 

risks and opportunities.
Facilities / Public Buildings  Public Buildings closed to public, open to staff.  Additional cleaning undertaken by caretaking 

staff. 
 Reactive repair and maintenance works have 

been undertaken at buildings whist “closed”.

 Additional cleaning routing and resource will 
be required if more staff are to return to the 
buildings. 

 One way systems agreed
 Hand sanitiser stations erected
 Work space, meeting room, facilities to be 

restricted to comply with social distancing. 
 Receptions re-configured.

Development Services Planning Applications  Restrictions on site visits 
 Processing issues due to postponement of 

committee decision making processes. 

 Virtual meetings now implemented
 Implement new legislation

Finance Procurement  Some procurement activity placed on hold as 
consequence of suspended services / inability 
to deliver projects during lockdown.  

 Payment of the Small Business and Retail, 
Hospitality and Leisure Grant Schemes 

 Planned procurement activity recommenced
 Additional procurement activity/support in 

relation to the COVID-19  recovery process 

Finance  Closedown of accounts delayed.  Additional financial planning  workload
 Completion of Government financial returns
 Support with business grants process

 Early update of the MTFP report to identify 
potential  longer-term financial issues

 Close budget monitoring of 2020/21 position
 Statement of Accounts draft produced July, 

external audit aiming to complete end of 
September

Revenues & Benefits Revenues  Flexible payment plans for council tax
 Flexible payment plans for business rates 
 Recovery action temporarily suspended
 Increased Council Tax & Business Rates arrears

 Rebilling of business rates due to additional 
reliefs

 Coordinating the business grants process
 Assessing Council tax hardship applications

 Post-event assurance in respect of grant 
payments

 Recommence recovery action
 Assess collection rates impact

Benefits  Rebilling of eligible LCTRS claimants 
 Increase in the number of council tax support 

and housing benefit cases

 Rebilling of LCTRS due to additional £150 
award

 Monitor impact of a recession on benefit 
workload

Customer Services  Closure of Council offices in Leek, Biddulph 
and Cheadle.

 Appointments by telephone have been offered 
if required.  

 Call centre staff able to handle calls from 
home    

 Service access diverted to the on-line and 
telephone access channels.

 Increase in the number of service requests 
that are being accessed through the Council’s 
website. 

 Post and Print – reduced volumes as service 
areas communicate electronically 

 Separate dedicated call numbers were set up 
to deal with the new functions such as 
supporting businesses and vulnerable people.

 Additional webforms created to enable 
customers to self serve 

 Central post and print function handling 
incoming and external mail and printing – 
scanning docs to service areas 

 

 Re-open receptions, but consider changes to 
the provision of these facilities

 Expecting increase in volumes of enquiries , 
change in circumstances , business’

 Continue with current post/print 
arrangements –removal of office equipment 
 

 
 

P
age 32



Appendix 2  - Summary of Town Centre Actions (including measures requested by Town and, Voluntary Organisations 
and Community Partners)

Leek Partners/Delivery Lead Progress
Temporary removal of parking bays at Derby St to allow footpath widening. 
The barriers in place at Derby Street are unsightly and need replacing .

SCC Highways Complete  - temporary barriers 
installed at Derby Street to widen 
pedestrian footpath. Enforcement 
of parking restrictions in 
discussion.  

Additional disabled parking bays in SMDC car parks SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Consider rent holidays for market traders SMDC Regeneration June market fees waived for all 
traders

Use of disc system for residents parking SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Free parking for first hour/3 months SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Additional support for retailers SMDC Regeneration
SSLEP Growth Hub
Staffordshire Chamber 
of Commerce

Additional support options being 
considered.

Work to with County Council to implement and promote any relaxation of 
planning restrictions that limit where food and drink can be served/consumed

SCC
SMDC licensing
PoliceIn

In progress 

Reopen car parks and toilets allowing for social distancing and additional 
cleaning regimes. 

SMDC Assets Complete

Provide a range of online guidance and advice on safe working practices for 
businesses 

SMDC Regeneration Complete

Consider development of trader networks -  bespoke ‘totally locally’/’love 
where you live’ projects for each town 

Leek Traders
Leek TC

In discussion with Totally Locally 
High Streets on-line  - proposal for 
Leek to act as pilot project 

P
age 33



sponsored by Visa before roll out 
to other Staffordshire Moorlands 
towns 
http://www.totallylocally.shop/

Consider changes to layout of markets and additional signage to maintain 
social distancing -sharing NABMA guidance

SMDC Regeneration Complete. To be reviewed  
regularly considering 
customer/trader feedback

Training packages to include digital trading options and resilience planning SSLEP Growth Hub
East Midlands Chamber 
of Commerce

Promotion of current training 
packages offered by partners. 
Working with partners to agree 
future provision based on local 
need.

Biddulph
TC to consider additional cleaning of touch points in the town centre along 
with cleaning stations

BTC BTC to action

Pavement markings to encourage social distancing – use of clematis flowers 
linked to ‘Helping Biddulph to Bloom’ campaign.

BTC
SCC

To be progressed

Encourage outdoor seating at pubs, restaurants and cafes BTC
SMDC Licensing
SCC
Police

In Progress 

Offer free parking for six months to encourage residents and visitors to return 
– TC can subsidise cost

SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Consider cashless payment systems for car parking SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Work to with County Councils to implement and promote any relaxation of 
planning restrictions that limit where food and drink can be served/consumed

SCC
HPBC licensing
Police

In progress 

Reopen car parks and toilets allowing for social distancing and additional 
cleaning regimes. 

SMDC Complete

Provide a range of online guidance and advice on safe working practices for 
businesses 

SMDC Regeneration Complete

Consider development of trader networks -  bespoke ‘totally locally’/’love BTC In discussion with Totally Locally 

P
age 34

http://www.totallylocally.shop/


where you live’ projects for each town SMDC Regeneration
Trader Networks

High Streets on-line  - proposal for 
Staffordshire Moorlands towns to 
act as pilot project sponsored by 
Visa 
http://www.totallylocally.shop/

Purchase and improve premises within the town centre, offering them at 
attractive rates to small/start up businesses

BTC BTC to action

Introduce a shop-front grant scheme to improve the look of the town centre. BTC BTC to action
Promotion of town map. BTC BTC to action
Delivery of pocket park project and second phase of our Station Road project BTC BTC to action
Identify landlords of town centre properties / add window cling to empty 
shops

BTC BTC to action

Training packages to include digital trading options and resilience planning SSLEP Growth Hub
East Midlands Chamber 
of Commerce

Promotion of current training 
packages offered by partners. 
Working with partners to agree 
future provision based on local 
need.

Cheadle
Additional cleaning of car park pay machines, crossing buttons, bus stops, 
benches, etc..
 

DCC To be progressed with partners

One-way areas to widen pavements SCC Discussed with SCC Highways. 
Need to consider bus route – 
difficult to implement 

Free car parking for a period of time, Car parking permits for residents, higher 
parking charges for visitors 

SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Pavement markings to encourage social distancing    SCC
CTC

To be progressed with partners 

Consider cashless payment systems for car parking SMDC Assets To be considered as part of parking 
review

Town centre leaflet to highlight shopping offer CTC To be followed up by partners
Additional street cleaning SCC To be investigated
The road works at Tape Street to be reviewed – preventing adequate social SCC To be raised with SCC Highways

P
age 35

http://www.totallylocally.shop/


distancing. 
Consider additional car parking space for Bakers Arms to allow them to reopen 
safely 

SMDC Assets Assets to visit site to consider 
proposal

Work to with County Council to implement and promote any relaxation of 
planning restrictions that limit where food and drink can be served/consumed

SCC
SMDC  licensing
Police

In progress  

Reopen car parks and toilets allowing for social distancing and additional 
cleaning regimes. 

SMDC Assets Complete

Provide a range of online guidance and advice on safe working practices for 
businesses 

SMDC Regeneration Complete

Consider development of trader networks -  bespoke ‘totally locally’/’love 
where you live’ projects for each town 

CTC
Traders networks

In discussion with Totally Locally 
High Streets on-line  - proposal for 
Staffordshire Moorlands  towns to 
act as pilot project sponsored by 
Visa 
http://www.totallylocally.shop/

Training packages to include digital trading options and resilience planning SSLEP Growth Hub
Staffordshire Chamber 
of Commerce

Promotion of current training 
packages offered by partners. 
Working with partners to agree 
future provision based on local 
need. 

P
age 36

http://www.totallylocally.shop/


STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel
16th September 2020

Appendices Attached 

 APPENDIX 1 Changes to the current planning system implications and 
comments summary table.

 APPENDIX 2 White Paper Proposals, implications and comments summary 
table.

1.        Reason for the Report:

1. To appraise Members of: 
a. recent changes to the planning system enacted in the Business and 

Planning Act 2020 
b. proposed changes to the current Planning System as set out in the 

Government Consultation Document Published 6 August 2020
c. proposed changes as set out in the White Paper “Planning for the 

Future” which was published for consultation by Government on 6th 
August 2020

2. To consider the Council’s response to the consultations. 

2. Recommendation

2.1    That Members note the report and delegate authority to the Executive Director 
(Place) to prepare a final response to both consultations based on the 
attached summary tables, incorporating any comments of the Service Delivery 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel  and Cabinet and to submit them to Ministry of 
Housing, Communities & Local Government before the end of the consultation 
periods.

TITLE: Recent and proposed changes to the 
Planning System including the Planning 
White Paper 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Wain – Planning, Development 
and Property

OFFICER: Ben Haywood – Head of Development 
Services

WARDS: Whole District 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Business and Planning Bill received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. It 
introduces a series of changes to planning legislation intended to help 
businesses, particularly in the hard-hit hospitality and construction sectors, to 
get back to work safely and quickly. The key changes are:

 An automatic extension to planning permissions and listed building 
consents which have lapsed or are due to lapse between 23 March and 31 
December 2020.

 A temporary, fast track deemed consent route for developers to apply to 
local planning authorities to vary existing conditions, or the details 
submitted under a condition, that limit construction site working hours. 

 The previous Class A1 (shops), A2 (financial and professional services), 
A3 (restaurants and cafés) and Class B1 (business), are to be grouped 
together into a new Use Class – Class E (commercial, business and 
service) along with uses such as gyms, nurseries and health centres 
(previously Class D1) and non-residential institutions, such as assembly 
and leisure (previously Class D2) 

 New permitted development rights are being introduced to extend buildings 
upwards to create new homes and living space subject to the developer 
applying to the Local Planning Authority for “prior approval” of certain 
aspects of the development such as design. However, the LPA cannot call 
into question the “principle” of the development. 

 Similar provisions are being introduced to allow vacant and redundant free-
standing commercial and light industrial premises, and residential blocks of 
flats, to be demolished and replaced with new residential units. 

3.2 The implications of the changes include:

 Reduction in the number of planning applications but potential increase in 
the number of prior approval and other applications. 

 Possible reduction in planning fee income
 Economic benefits for developers and associated construction industry in 

the area and those looking to establish new businesses
 Potential to boost housing land supply but may slow delivery
 Less opportunity for consultation with the public, Parishes and Councillors
 Positive and negative impacts on the vitality and viability of town centres
 Limiting the number of factors which can be taking into account when 

considering applications for redevelopment of buildings for residential or 
“building-up”. In particular loss of ability to control the “principle” of 
development 

3.3 The consultation “Changes to the Current Planning System” sets out 
proposals for measures to improve the effectiveness of the current planning 
system. The 4 main proposals are:

Page 38



 changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
 securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term 

until the transition to a new system
 supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small 

sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to 
affordable housing

 extending the current Permission in Principle to major development

3.4 The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard 
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of 
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years 
will now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing 
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues. 
Plans for new “First Homes” are also proposed alongside increasing the 
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer 
affordable homes being developed in the district that meet the needs as 
assessed in our Strategic Housing Market Assessment. 

3.5 The White Paper, titled “Planning for the Future”, sets out a series of high-level 
reforms to streamline and modernise the planning process. Key changes 
include:

 A significant emphasis on design and sustainability, 
 Changes to the system of developer contributions to infrastructure, 
 Change to a zonal planning system setting out whether planning 

permission for certain developments will be granted on a given site. Under 
the proposals, land will be designated into three categories: Growth areas 
Renewal areas and Protected areas 

 National development management policies with local plans focusing on 
site or area specific issues.

 Simplified local plan process with single statutory sustainability test. 
 Penalties for LPAs that fail to adopt plans within 30 months. 
 Standard methodology for assessing local housing need that is binding, 

with the intention of creating greater certainty.  Need to be assessed over 
minimum period of 10 years, rather than the current 5 years for housing. 

 Local Plans should be visual and based on the latest digital technology,
 Raising affordable housing thresholds  
 Strengthening planning enforcement powers 

3.5 Key issues and concerns include:

 Increased certainty but potentially less flexibility
 Loss of protection for some areas
 More streamlined processes but risks around community engagement and 

ability to influence at a local level. 
 Positive move towards use of technology but risk of moving towards 

automated decision making and loss of democratic control and flexibility. 
 Significant concerns around binding standard housing methodology due to 

inability to factor in local constraints 
 Scrapping the 5 year supply requirement is welcomed. 

Page 39



 Removal of time extensions risks more refusals, appeals and 
resubmissions and may lengthen process.

 30 month deadline for local plans raises significant resource issues 
particularly for the Alliance which is responsible for 2 local plans. This 
again also raises local engagement issues. 

 Emphasis on design is to be welcomed but how is “beautiful” defined and 
how this fits with creating “certainty”. 

 Emphasis on climate change and sustainability to be welcomed but 
concerns about how this would work in practice, impact on protected 
assets and whether targets are ambitious enough. 

 Concerns about national levy and local viability issues as well as raising of 
threshold for contributions. Issues around flexibility and setting spending 
priorities

 Unclear whether “in-kind” delivery of affordable housing on site would be 
mandatory

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan identifies that our key priorities include “ High 
quality development and building control with an “open for business 
approach””

5. Analysis and Summary of Changes

Business and Planning Act 2020 

5.1 The Business and Planning Bill received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. It 
introduces a series of changes to planning legislation intended to help 
businesses, particularly in the hard-hit hospitality and construction sectors, to 
get back to work safely and quickly.

5.2 Extending Planning Permissions 

 The Act provides for an automatic extension to planning permissions and 
listed building consents which have lapsed or are due to lapse between 23 
March and 31 December 2020. 

 This extension will be to 1 May 2021. 
 The extension will apply automatically for permissions and consents which are 

extant in between the measures coming into force on 19 August 2020 and 31 
December 2020. 

 Any planning permissions which have lapsed since 23 March 2020 can be 
reinstated and extended subject to an Additional Environmental Approval. 

5.3 Construction Site Hours 

 A temporary, fast track deemed consent route for developers to apply to local 
planning authorities to vary existing conditions, or the details submitted under 
a condition, that limit construction site working hours. 

 Came into force on 28 July 2020. 

Page 40



 Local authorities have 14 calendar days excluding public and bank holidays to 
consider such applications. If they are not determined in this period they will 
be given a deemed consent. 

 If an application is approved, this will temporarily amend planning restrictions 
on construction working hours until 1 April 2021, unless another earlier date 
has been requested by the applicant or decided upon by the local planning 
authority, with the agreement of the applicant.

 There is no requirement for publicity or consultation although we  have 
decided to notify

o Parish/Town Council
o Ward Members
o Environmental Health

And give them 10 days to respond.
 The guidance says local planning authorities should not refuse applications to 

extend working hours until 9pm, Monday to Saturday without very compelling 
reasons. In some cases, such as in areas without residential properties, 
extending working hours beyond this, including allowing 24-hour working 
where appropriate, may be justified.

 If the authority wish to propose minor changes to the proposed hours these 
will need to have been agreed in writing by the applicant

 In considering the application the LPA can take into account:
o need for proposed extended working hours as a result of social 

distancing;
o any mitigating measures to be put in place to avoid significant impacts 

on businesses and the health and quality of life of those people in the 
near vicinity;

o the original reasons for any existing limits on construction working 
hours, 

o the extent of additional working, compared to current permitted hours, 
and degree to which this variation is expected to result in local impacts 
that cannot be mitigated.

 The LPA will need to give careful consideration to applications which are 
o in proximity to businesses or community uses which are particularly 

sensitive to noise, dust and vibration e.g.  hospitals, or places of worship, 
o made in relation to sites in close proximity to residential areas where the 

request for changing hours is likely to have a significant impact on health, 
o made in relation to EIA development 
o made in relation to development which was subject to a Habitats 

Regulations Assessment 
o for development adjacent to Sites of Special Scientific Interest, 
Where an adverse impact can be demonstrated with regard to the above a 
refusal of the application could be justified 

5.4 Use Classes & Changes Of Use

 The changes come into effect from 1 September 2020.
 In simple terms, the previous Class A1 (shops), A2 (financial and professional 

services), A3 (restaurants and cafés) and Class B1 (business), are to be 
grouped together into a new Use Class – Class E (commercial, business and 
service).

Page 41



 In addition, uses such as gyms, nurseries and health centres (previously Class 
D1) and non-residential institutions, such as assembly and leisure (previously 
Class D2) are also now included within the new Class E.

 This means that with effect from 1 September, building or land currently within 
Classes A1-A3, B1, D1 and D2 use will no longer require planning permission 
to be changed for another use within the new Class E.

 However, there are some exceptions.
o Former Class D1 and D2 uses that are not included within the new Class E 

(and will therefore continue to require a change of use permission) 
include: 

o Small-scale shops (up to 280sqm, located 1000 metres or more from 
another retail unit), schools, libraries and art galleries, swimming pools, 
skating rinks and areas for outdoor sports. These are now included within 
two new Use Classes (F1 and F2). 

o Drinking establishments (formerly Class A4) and hot food takeaways 
(formerly Class A5), together with cinemas, concert, dance and bingo halls 
(formerly within Class D2) are removed from the defined use classes, 
and will therefore require permission for any material change of use. 

o Where relevant, any Article 4 Directions imposed by an LPA and controlling 
changes of use within specific areas will remain in force. 

o Restrictive conditions already in place through relevant permissions (and 
S106 agreements) will remain in force. 

o Where relevant, planning permission will still be required for external 
alteration

5.5 Building Up (Flats)

 New permitted development rights are being introduced to extend buildings 
upwards to create new homes and living space. 

 From 1 August 2020 purpose-built freestanding blocks of flats of three storeys 
or more can be extended upwards by up to 2 additional storeys to create new 
homes, up to a height of 30m. 

 However the applicant must apply for prior approval of the authority as to—
(a) transport and highways impacts of the development;
(b) air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development;
(c) contamination risks in relation to the building;
(d) flooding risks in relation to the building;
(e) the external appearance of the building;
(f) the provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the new 
dwellinghouses;
(g) impact on the amenity of the existing building and neighbouring premises  
including overlooking, privacy and the loss of light; and

 Applications must be publicised by site notice, & neighbour letter for 21 days
 The development must not begin before the receipt by the applicant from the 

local
planning authority of a written notice giving their prior approval.

5.6 Building Up (Other Buildings inc. Houses)

 A second phase of new permitted development rights to build upwards allow 
up to 2 additional storeys on free standing blocks, up to a height of 30 metres, 

Page 42



and on buildings in a terrace (of 2 or more buildings) in certain commercial 
uses come into force on 31 August 2020. 

 They also allow up to 2 additional storeys on existing houses, detached or in a 
terrace, to create new self-contained homes or additional living space up to a 
height of 18 metres (7m over existing). 

 Single storey homes will be able to add 1 additional storey (up to 3.5m in 
height over existing). 

 Semi-detached and terraces will not be able to exceed 3.5m above the height 
of the attached dwelling. 

 There are a number of other limitations on materials and roof pitch (which 
must match existing), no side windows etc. 

 Prior approvals of the Authority will be required as to—
(i) impact on the amenity of any adjoining premises including 

overlooking, privacy and the loss of light;
(ii) the external appearance of the dwellinghouse, including the design 

and architectural features of— (aa) the principal elevation of the 
dwellinghouse, and (bb) any side elevation of the dwellinghouse that 
fronts a highway;

(iii) air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development; and
 Applications must be publicised by site notice, & neighbour letter for 21 days
 The development must not begin before the receipt by the applicant from the 

local planning authority of a written notice giving their prior approval

5.7 Demolition and Rebuilding as Residential 

 From 31 August 2020 new PD Right allows vacant and redundant free-
standing commercial and light industrial premises, and residential blocks of 
flats, to be demolished and replaced with new residential units. 

 At the same time the right will allow up to 2 storeys to be added to the height 
of the original building, up to a max of 18 metres. 

 The regulations in respect of this don’t appear to have been published yet but 
it will be subject again to prior approval and it is anticipated that the process 
and matters which the LPA can consider will be similar to those above.

5.8 Extended opening of holiday parks, caravan parks and campsites 

 Government has issued a Written Ministerial Statement to emphasise that 
planning enforcement is a discretionary activity, and local planning authorities 
should not seek to undertake enforcement action which would unnecessarily 
restrict the ability of holiday parks, caravan parks and campsites to extend 
their open season.

 Local planning authorities should also prioritise decision making for applications 
to vary relevant planning conditions, and take account of the economic 
benefits resulting from extended opening. 

Consultation: Changes to the Current Planning System

5.9 This consultation sets out proposals for measures to improve the effectiveness 
of the current planning system. The 4 main proposals are:

Page 43



 changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
 securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term until 

the transition to a new system
 supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small 

sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to affordable 
housing

 extending the current Permission in Principle to major development

White Paper “Planning for the Future”

5.10 The White Paper, titled “Planning for the Future”, sets out a series of high-level 
reforms to streamline and modernise the planning process. It has a significant 
emphasis on design and sustainability, and seeks to improve the system of 
developer contributions to infrastructure, and ensure more land is available for 
development.

5.11 The White Paper contains 24 proposals set out under 3 “pillars” as follows:
Pillar 1: planning for development
Pillar 2: planning for beautiful and sustainable places
Pillar 3: planning for infrastructure and connected places

5.12 The main changes include:
 A fundamental change to a zonal planning system setting out whether 

planning permission for certain developments will be granted on a given 
site. Under the proposals, land will be designated into three categories:

o Growth areas: Proposals for new homes, hospitals, schools, shops 
and offices will be automatically allowed.

o Renewal areas: Proposals for development, largely on urban and 
brownfield sites, will be permitted through a prior approval system.

o Protected areas: Development on Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty and National Parks will continue to be restricted.

 Development management policies established at national scale and Local 
Plans to focus on identifying areas for development and protection. 
Development management policy contained in the plan would be restricted 
to site or area-specific requirements,. The National Planning Policy 
Framework would become the primary source of policies for development 
management.

 The Local Plan process would be streamlined and subject to a single 
statutory “Sustainable Development” test, replacing the existing test of 
soundness, updating requirements for assessments and abolishing the 
Duty to Cooperate.

 Changes to the standard methodology for assessing local housing need. At 
present, the system allows housing requirements to be constantly 
challenged through the Local Plan process and at Appeal by developers, 
leading to delays in plan preparation and determining applications.  The 
new methodology would create a standard requirement that is binding, with 
the intention of creating greater certainty.  The new standard method would 
set out development needs such as homes, businesses and community 
facilities for a minimum period of 10 years, rather than the current 5 years 
for housing. 

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future/planning-for-the-future#pillar-1-planning-for-development
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future/planning-for-the-future#pillar-2-planning-for-beautiful-and-sustainable-places


 Local Plans should be visual and map-based, standardised, based on the 
latest digital technology, and supported by a new template.

 A pledge to create a system that will ensure local housing plans are 
developed and agreed within 30 months.  This deadline would be driven by 
legislation with sanctions for local authorities that fail to meet this 
timescale.  

 Increased emphasis on design and delivering “beautiful places”, including 
more design guidance and design codes to be prepared locally with 
community involvement with emphasis on local character.

 Promotion of all new homes to achieve a zero carbon ready status with 
without the need for costly retrofitting.

 A simpler national levy to replace the current system of CIL and S106 
providing more certainty around financial obligations.

 A review of affordable housing thresholds  increasing the threshold above 
which affordable housing is required.  The reasoning being that this would 
potentially make more sites viable and would speed up the pace of delivery 
by removing the need for negotiation.

 A rules-based system that makes it clearer to understand development 
requirements for a scheme and allocation, to reduce the number of 
planning cases that go to appeal instead of generalised policies

 Securing of First Homes for local people, key workers and first-time buyers 
at a 30% discount through developer contributions in the short-term until 
transition to a new system.

 Investing in people and skills to deliver the planning system
 Strengthening planning enforcement powers and sanctions available to 

local planning authorities to ensure they support the new planning system. 
Introduction of more powers to address intentional unauthorised 
development, consider higher fines, and look to ways of supporting more 
enforcement activity.

 Extending the current Permission in Principle to major developments.

5.13 Each of the proposals are detailed in full in the table at Appendix 2 of this 
report. The White Paper is inviting views on the proposed changes and poses 
a series of 26 questions. It is recommended that a response to these 
questions is drafted based on the comments, implications and observations 
within the table along with any further views which the Scrutiny Panel and 
Cabinet / ALT have following their discussion and consideration of this report. 

6. Implications

Business and Planning Act 2020 

Workload and Financial

6.1 Removal of the need for planning applications to renew lapsed consents, and 
for certain changes of use, will reduce workloads slightly and along with them 
some reduction in Fee Income. No fee is changeable for the fast track 
applications to vary construction site hours. However, arguably, such 
applications do not represent lost income as such requests would probably not 

Page 45



have been made prior to COVID-19. Nevertheless they represent an additional 
workload burden. 

6.2 Although planning applications will not be required for “building up” or 
demolition and rebuilding as residential, “prior approval” applications will be 
needed and therefore no change is envisaged in terms of workload.  
Furthermore fees will be payable for the new prior approval applications. For 
example, the fee for a prior approval application under Part 20 (construction of 
new dwellings) where the number of new dwellings proposed is 50 or fewer is 
£334 for each new dwelling; but where the number of new dwellings proposed 
by the development exceeds 50, the fee is £16,525, plus an additional £100 
for each new dwelling in excess of 50, subject to a maximum in total of 
£300,000. By comparison standard planning application fees for dwellings are 
£462 per dwelling up to 50 dwellings. Where the development exceeds 50 
dwellings £22,859 and an additional £138 per dwelling in excess of 50, subject 
to a maximum total of £300,000. Therefore some loss of revenue could be 
expected on this basis, but this is on the assumption that the same proposal 
would have been forthcoming under the previous regime and that the changes 
have not incentivised the development to come forward in the first instance 
which case it could be regarded as additional income. 

Workforce

6.3 Overall it is considered that any reduction in planning applications numbers 
and associated fees are likely to be cancelled out by an increase prior 
approval applications and fees therefore no significant workforce implications 
are identified at this time. However, as always staffing levels within the team 
will need to be kept under review to ensure that we are responding to the 
needs and demands of the service and budgets. 

Legal

6.4 The Council must ensure that it complies with and operates in accordance with 
the new legislation and regulations to ensure that it remains free from legal 
challenge and makes planning decisions in a lawful manner. Work has already 
been put in hand to amend processes and procedures such as planning 
validation and staff training to ensure that we are able to accept and process 
correctly new types of application. 

6.5 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that there are 3 
aspects to sustainable development (social, economic and environmental). 
The automatic extension to planning consents is positive from a housing land 
supply perspective in that consents will remain extant and therefore in the 
Council’s 5 year supply for longer. However, it may encourage developers to 
delay commencement and therefore slow delivery. It will also mean that the 
Council does not have the opportunity to reassess any changes in 
circumstances or policy prior to renewing lapsed consents. 

6.6 The fast-track applications to vary working hours are positive from an 
economic development point of view and restarting the construction industry. 

Page 46



However, there are potential implications for the amenity of neighbouring 
occupiers and less opportunity for potentially affected residents, Parishes and 
members to comment on changes. 

6.7 The changes to the use classes are positive from an economic development 
point of view in that it will allow new businesses to establish or existing ones 
to expand without going over the hurdle of planning applications with 
associated cost and time implications. It takes into account the changing 
shape of town centres and the movement away from retail. For example, it 
would allow a vacant shop in a high street to be converted to a café or gym 
without planning permission. However, it would also allow an office building or 
light industrial unit on an out of town business park to become a shop, for 
example, which could be detrimental to the vitality and viability of the town 
centre and could result in the loss of valuable employment space.  

6.8 The new permitted development rights to allow buildings to be extended 
upwards and rebuilt as to create additional dwellings would be beneficial from 
a housing land supply point of view. It would also help to bring back into use 
derelict and redundant brownfield sites. The Local Planning Authority would 
still retain control over some aspects of the scheme such as design and 
amenity considerations. However, they would not be able to call into question 
the principle of the development. For example, there would be no opportunity 
to challenge the sustainability of redeveloping a redundant building in the open 
countryside, remote from shops and services, as large residential 
development. Similarly, for example, under the policies in the NPPF, 
extensions to properties in the Green Belt are only currently granted planning 
permission if they are not disproportionate to the original dwelling and 
maintains the openness of the Green Belt. Adding 2 floors to a property under 
permitted development rights could result in a disproportionate extension and 
may be harmful to openness but if it were constructed under permitted 
development rights, the Council could not refuse it on these grounds. This has 
a significant implication for this Council’s area, as substantial amount of which 
lies within Green Belt. 

Changes to the Current Planning System

6.9 The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard 
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of 
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years 
will now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing 
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues. 
Plans for new “First Homes are also proposed alongside increasing the 
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer 
affordable homes being developed in the district that meet the needs as 
assessed in our Strategic Housing Market Assessment. A full analysis of the 
implications of the changes is provided in the Table at Appendix 1.

Planning White Paper

Page 47



6.10 A full analysis of the implications of the changes is provided in the Table at 
Appendix 2. However, key issues and concerns include:

 Increased certainty but potentially less flexibility
 Loss of protection for some areas
 More streamlined processes but risks around community engagement and 

ability to influence at a local level. 
 Positive move towards use of technology but risk of moving towards 

automated decision making and loss of democratic control and flexibility. 
 Significant concerns around binding standard housing methodology due to 

inability to factor in local constraints 
 Scrapping the 5 year supply requirement is welcomed. 
 Removal of time extensions risks more refusals, appeals and 

resubmissions and may lengthen process.
 30 month deadline for local plans raises significant resource issues 

particularly for the Alliance which is responsible for 2 local plans. This 
again also raises local engagement issues. 

 Emphasis on design is to be welcomed but how is “beautiful” defined and 
how this fits with creating “certainty”. 

Neil Rodgers
                                              Executive Director (Place)

Contact Details
Mark James
Principal Planning 
Officer
Mark.james@staffsm
oorlands.gov.uk

07976 753404

Ben Haywood
Head of Development 
Services
Ben.haywood@staffsmoorland
s.gov.uk

01538 394500 ext 4924

Page 48

mailto:Mark.james@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:Mark.james@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:Ben.haywood@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:Ben.haywood@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Changes to the current planning system – summary of proposals and possible implications

Summary of proposal Possible implications
The standard methodology for assessing housing numbers in strategic plans
New method to ensure delivery of 300,000 homes per year (140,000 more 
than in Local Plans currently).

Achieve a better distribution of homes where homes are identified in more 
high-demand areas and in emerging demand areas across the country 
(such as the Northern Powerhouse).

Application of the most up to date data. The size of existing housing stock 
and affordability over the past 10 years are now to be considered

Current method               Proposed method

Using existing stock in the calculation is proposed to “ensure that all areas, 
as a minimum, are contributing a share of the national total, proportionate 
to the size of their current housing market.” However, this approach 
assumes that areas can continue to grow at a rate proportionate to their 
existing stock – this may not always be possible, particularly in areas 
constrained by topography, national parks etc.  This is a concern.

However, unlike the White Paper proposals, this approach would still 
enable local authorities to seek to deliver lower housing numbers through 
local plans where justified. 

Consideration of the affordability of housing over a 10 year period is likely 
to provide a better indication of the issue. However, this approach is 
predicated on the view that increasing housing supply will improve 
affordability. There is little evidence of this locally. 

The removal of the cap in the increase of housing required is a significant 
concern. 

The estimated impact of the new methodology is set out below.

Staffs Moorlands

Local Plan 
requirement

Average 
delivery (last 3 
years)

Current 
standard 
method

New standard 
method

320 146 185 255

P
age 49



The new methodology would increase the housing requirement in 
comparison with the current method but would result in a reduction from 
the new Local Plan requirement. Please note that the Local Plan 
requirement is based on the approach set out in the 2012 NPPF and 
guidance which pre-dates the current standard method. Any new 
requirement would be considered as part of the next Local Plan review.

Delivering First Homes and supporting small/medium developers
A minimum of 25 per cent of all affordable housing units secured through 
developer contributions should be First Homes. This will be a national 
threshold.

Initially secured through S106, but in the future through the new 
Infrastructure Levy as set out in the White Paper. 

Planning application should seek to capture the same amount of value as 
would be captured under the local authority’s up-to-date published policy. 
For any remaining affordable housing that is viable (and required) under 
local policy after provision for First Homes, there are 2 options:

1. Follow local policy
2. Negotiate a tenure mix for remaining 75% of units

First Homes exception sites policy to be introduced

Increased thresholds for affordable housing contributions to a minimum of 
40 or 50 dwellings.

This would reduce the amount of traditional affordable rent or shared 
ownership homes delivered through  registered providers. This runs 
counter to the identified housing needs identified in the SHMA and Local 
Plan. 

Potentially this could mean we would no longer be able to deliver any 
shared ownership housing through planning gain. The government are 
prioritising home ownership over the traditional types of affordable 
housing such as rent and shared ownership which generally meets the 
needs of lower income or benefit dependent households. 

Increasing the site threshold to 40 or 50 dwellings would significantly 
reduce the number of sites where an affordable housing contribution 
would be taken. This would impact considerable on delivering affordable 
housing in some of our rural communities where sites of 40 or 50 units 
would be unacceptable.

P
age 50



APPENDIX 2 

Planning White Paper – summary of proposal and possible implications

Summary of proposal Possible implications
Pillar One – Planning for Development 
Proposal 1 – Local Plans to identify three types of land:

Growth areas - suitable for substantial development such as urban 
extensions, new settlements or key re-development sites. Site would have 
outline consent (see proposal 5)

Renewal areas - suitable for development such as existing built up areas 
suitable for small developments and infill. A statutory presumption is 
favour of development would apply here.

Protected areas – where development would be limited and subject to 
planning permission such as green belt, conservation areas, national parks 
and open countryside 

 

The principle of classifying land is not new. 

The Local Plan already identifies; allocations for development where the 
principle of development for specified uses has been agreed, settlement 
boundaries for town and larger villages within which the principle of 
development is acceptable and areas of countryside/green belt/local green 
space etc. which are protected. 

What the White Paper seeks to achieve in this respect is to standardize and 
simplify the designations applied across England to enable better data 
analysis at a national level and improve transparency.

The inclusion of the open countryside within the “protected” areas is to be 
welcomed. 

It is not clear if the same degree of protection would be given across areas 
protected for different reasons. For example, green belt has historically 
had stronger protection than the open countryside. 

(See proposal 5 for related comments) 
Proposal 2 – Development management policies established at national
scale and an altered role for Local Plans.

Local Plan policies to focus on area or site specific requirements only 
supported by design codes and guidance. Neighbourhood plan would also 
provide design codes.

Generic policies such as those relating to flood risk, heritage or retail would 

Are “machine readable policies” the first step towards computers 
determining simple applications?  

It is acknowledged that in some instances, Local Plan policies overlap with 
national policy. This would save time and simplify both plan preparation 
and consideration of applications.
However, scope for local discretion for some policies should be allowed in 
order for Councils to address matters which may be corporate priorities. 

P
age 51



be provided at a national level. 

Policies will be “machine readable”

Alternative options are allowing Council to adopt local policies in 
exceptional circumstances or simply ensuring that local policies do not 
duplicate national policy.  

Whilst change to a zonal based system with clear cut “yes” or “no” policies 
would help to create certainty for developers and decision makers it would 
remove the subjectivity and judgement that developers as well as local 
authorities rely upon to “argue a case” for or against a particular 
development dependent upon the material considerations surrounding the 
circumstances of a particular case.

Proposal 3 - Local Plans should be subject to a single statutory 
“sustainable development” test, replacing the existing tests of soundness. 

An alternative option would be to make the tests for Local Plans to pass 
examination less onerous. 

More streamlined plan making - Sustainability Appraisals, Duty to 
Cooperate to be replaced. Less emphasis evidence to support deliverability 
of plan.

Consideration to be given to the appropriate scale at which to prepare 
Local Plan with strategic issues.

More focus on digital Local Plans  

Streamlined requirements for preparing and passing examination Local 
Plans are welcome in principle.

Little detail available at present to determine if replacement requirements 
are better. 

Risk that Local Plans are to be prepared at a higher level (future unitary or 
county level) in areas with cross boundary issues?

Improved access to Local Plans and availability of digital data is a positive 
move.

Proposal 4 – A standard method for establishing housing requirement
figures

This would release more land where affordability is worst and take account 
of development constraints with a view to achieving the Government’s 
aspiration of developing 300,000 homes a year. 

Builds on current standard methodology with consideration of 
affordability, size of existing settlements and constraints such as green 
belt, flood risk and national parks.  

Differs from current system of identifying local housing need in that “it 

This is a significant concern

Binding requirements based on a national formula are unlikely to 
accurately reflect local constraints.

Landscape, topography, infrastructure and the proximity to the national 
park are examples of constraints that warrant detailed consideration at a 
local level.

Consideration of the size of existing settlements would appear to be 
predicated on a assumption that towns can continue to grow at the same 
rate based on past trends

P
age 52



would be binding” to “drive greater land release”

Five year housing land supply requirement abolished.

Housing Delivery Test to be retained 

A binding housing requirement which does not reflect local constraints 
could lead to unsuitable sites being developed.

This approach runs counter to the ethos of the Localism Act which 
scrapped regionally set requirements. 

Scrapping the 5 year housing land supply requirement is welcome as the 
Housing Delivery Test already proves an incentive to LPAs to boost supply. 

Alternative option for establishing housing requirements is preferable – i.e. 
local decision on housing numbers based on a standard method. However, 
the 5 year land supply regime would be retained. 

Proposal 5 – outline approval granted within “growth” areas. Detailed 
permission then via either reformed reserved matters, Local 
Development Orders or Development Consent Order 

Renewal areas = “presumption in favour. Permission granted by; automatic 
consent for pre-specified forms of development (“fast-track to beauty”), 
full application (but faster process), or Local Development Order, 
Neighbourhood Development Order.

Protected – development requires full permission and judged against NPPF 
policies. 

Means of allowing interested parties to raise concerns where the principle 
of development is already agreed is to be determined.

The “growth” designations have more teeth than current allocations as 
they grant outline consent. Higher stakes earlier in the process and even 
more contentious. Much greater detail and expense required to justify 
growth designations by Councils and developers. This may make the 
shortened timeframe for the preparation of Local Plan even more 
ambitious.

Less opportunity for Councillors, residents and other consultees to engage 
with the process once areas have been designated for growth or renewal 
We know that historically is has been harder to encourage communities to 
engage in the plan making process than when an application has been 
submitted.

Providing growth areas with automatic outline permission could reduce 
planning fee income

Proposal 6 – faster decisions and greater use of technology

Firm deadlines for the determination of applications (13 or 8 weeks) – no 
more time extensions

Fewer applications determined by Councillors. Anti-democratic?  

Aspiration to speed up decisions is welcome but it should not come at the 
expense of proper consideration of proposals. Removal of the option for 
time extensions will result in a return to applications which are found to be 

P
age 53



Machine readable data and new software which “will help automate 
routine processes, such as knowing whether new applications are within 
the rules, which will support faster and more certain decision-making” 

Standardisation of supporting data

Delegation of detailed planning decisions to officers where the principle of 
development has been established

Automatic refunds if applications are determined late

“The delegation of detailed planning decisions to planning officers where 
the principle of development has been established, as detailed matters for 
consideration should be principally a matter for professional planning 
judgment”

unacceptable on a point which can be easily rectified simply being refused 
in order to meet statutory timescales rather than agreeing an extension 
and achieving a positive outcome. This in turn means that the developer 
must either withdraw to avoid a refusal or resubmit an amended 
application or appeal following a refusal. This would result in  lengthening 
the process and increase the costs to the developer for gaining an approval  
and mean that the LPA has to deal with more resubmitted applications 
which do not attract a planning fee.

The beginning of automated planning decisions? Risk that decisions based 
solely on data may result in poor quality develop without the scope for 
human scrutiny?

Automatic planning fee refunds for late decisions may lead to rushed 
decisions and poor quality development or more refusals and increase in 
appeals and resubmissions (see above).

Proposal 7 – interactive web based map standard for planning 
documents.

Model templates for Local Plans

Will enable a digital register of planning policies – more transparent, 
accessible and efficient. 

The  aim of this proposal is welcome. Further detailed required to 
determine full implications. 

Proposal 8 – streamlined, more engaging plan making
 
30 month deadline for local plans

6 months – call for sites, public engagement of where development should 
go and what it should look like 

12 months – prepare plan and produces evidence

Resourcing the development of a Local Plan within 30 months is a major 
concern. This issue is particularly acute within the Alliance which is 
responsible for 2 separate local plans. 

Currently where a site is allocated in plan, a promoter/developer does a 
minimal amount of work to promote the site for allocation. The new 
planning system requires the promoter/developer and/or Council to 
undertake a considerable amount of work (akin to that required for an 
outline permission application) to promote the site, the issues being:

P
age 54



6 weeks – submit plan to SoS with statement on why the plan is 
appropriate and simultaneously publish plan for public engagement

9 months – examination, inspector considers if 3 categories shown in the 
plan are “sustainable” and makes binding changes if necessary. People who 
submit comments have a right to be heard (face-face, video,phone or in 
writing)

6 Weeks – Local Plan map, key and text are finalized and come into force

Mandatory deadlines – 30 month from legislation being brought into force 
OR 42 months (if plan adopted with past 3 years or if it has been submitted 
to SoS)

Plan reviews at least every 5 years or face intervention (this would be 
based on housing need and local issues)

Alternative Options – no automatic right to be heard at examination OR no 
examinations (self assessment by LPAs with PINs auditing some each year 

• High risk for developer/promoter as the outlay on project 
development provides no guarantee of a site’s allocation in the Local Plan. 
A promoter/developer would wish to see a site allocated before spending 
considerable sums in its planning.
• Councils are expected to deliver a Local Plan in 30 months, 
masterplanning and consultation being front loaded, with details for 
allocated growth areas are required to be included in line with an outline 
permission. This raises a resourcing issue.
• As the emphasis is on providing the detail required for each 
allocated site, additional engagement will be required from infrastructure 
providers. This is a significant pressure given that all LPAs are likely to be 
developing local plans on a similar timetable. 
• EIA (albeit in a simplified form) may identify the site 
constraints/issues and mitigation, but how does this get delivered in the 
timeframe proposed for the development of a local plan?
• Many LPAs do not have the resources/expertise to masterplan. In 
past instances, LPAs have been criticised by PINS for piggybacking on 
developers’ process/masterplans. Councils may also not have the expertise 
to counter developers’ proposals.

No opportunity for consultees to comment on a draft plan is likely to lead 
to a large increase in outstanding objections at the examination stage. 

The options presented to remove the right for objectors to appear at 
examination is a further erosion of public participation and likely to create 
a higher risk of challenge

Proposal 9 – retain neighbourhood plans with strong focus on digital data 
as with local plans.

Explore scope for neighbourhood plans for smaller areas such as individual 
streets

This could undermine the aspirations for many neighbourhood plans if the 
classification of land into growth, renewal or protected areas is dealt with 
at the local plan level only.  Would this leave neighbourhood plans to focus 
solely on design? 

Neighbourhood plans for smaller areas would increase the number of plans 
that Councils would need to support and should be accompanied by 

P
age 55



additional financial support from Government. 

The potential for multiple small  scale neighbourhood plans across a 
settlement may also complicate the development plan which is the 
opposite of one of the aims of the White Paper – to simplify the planning 
system. 

Proposal 10 – stronger emphasis on build out of permissions.

Masterplans and design codes to support variety of building types (as 
recommended by the Letwin Review) to diversify supply and increase build 
out rates

Should the White Paper go further by introducing measures / incentives to 
encourage developers to implement permissions more quickly?

Pillar 2 - Planning for beautiful and sustainable places
Proposal 11 – Design expectations to be more visual and predictable. 
Binding design codes and guidance.

Local documents to take account of national design guide, national design 
code model and revised manual for streets

Weight only given to local codes when input from the community has been 
demonstrated

In the absence of local codes, the national guide will apply

Stronger emphasis on good design is a positive move provided LPAs are 
given the backing to insist on it. 

The extent to which members of the community will wish to engage in 
detailed design code for areas where the principle of development has 
already been established is unclear.

Proposal 12 – new national body established to support design codes. 
Each LPA to have a chief officer for design and place making

New body to assist LPA with design codes could operate on a similar basis 
to Homes England or be based on existing design networks

Support in developing design codes will be essential so a designated 
national body is encouraged. 

The identification of chief officers will help to increase the profile of 
planning and the importance of good design at a corporate level. 

Proposal 13 – embed design aspirations within Homes England

The design and environmental objectives of Homes England will be 

Welcome news

P
age 56



strengthened
Proposal 14- facst track for beauty to incentivise and accelerate
high quality development which reflects local character and preferences 
by :

- Updating NPPF to provide strong support for schemes which 
accord with codes

- In growth areas, require masterplans and site specific codes to be 
agreed as a condition of the permission in principle with is granted 
in the local plan – to be prepared by LPAs alongside or subsequent 
to preparing local plans

- In renewal areas, amend PD to allow popular and “replicable 
designs”

The Government wants less subjectivity in planning but the definition of 
“beauty” is highly subjective. How is beauty defined? By who? It is a matter 
of judgment and opinion.

Fast track development = no scope for making proposals even better

Standardisation does not equate to good design. LPAs will need to make 
sure local design codes incorporate local distinctiveness to counter 
developer standardisation of design process.

Difficult to resource design codes in parallel to preparation of local plans. 
However, if codes are left until after the adoption of local plans, this will 
delay development.

Re-skilling of planning officers required to provide more emphasis on 
design?

Proposal 15 – update NPPF to support adaptation and mitigation of 
climate change and environmental benefits. 

Update to clarify role that local, spatially-specific policies can continue to 
play, such as in identifying important views, opportunities to improve 
public access or places where renewable energy or woodland and forestry 
creation could be accommodated

Further detail required but the principle of proposal is good.

Proposal 16 – quicker assessments of environmental impacts

New regime for Sustainability Appraisal, Strategic Environmental 
Assessment and Environmental Impact Assessment 

Separate consultation in the autumn with more detail.

Further detail required but the principle of proposal is good.

Proposal 17 – protection of historic assets Greater national support for measures to address climate change in the 

P
age 57



Local Plans to identify heritage assets “as well as locally important features 
such as protected views”

Update to NPPF to be more supportive of sympathetic change to support 
climate change. 

Better way of securing routine consents. 

historic environment is a positive move provided the correct safeguards to 
retain character / historic value.

The protection of views should be treated with caution. It should be 
clarified that this should only be an option in exceptional circumstances or 
it may risk restrictive designations across swathes of otherwise suitable 
development land being made in neighbourhood plans. 

Proposal 18 – improved energy efficiency standards to support net-zero 
by 2050

Follow on from Future Homes Standard paper. More detail to be provided 
by Government in the Autumn 

From 2025, new homes to produce 75-80% less CO2. Homes to be zero 
carbon ready with no need for retrofitting

More emphasis on monitoring and enforcement to ensure that high 
standards are met.

The Council should review further details of the proposed Future Homes 
Standard when Government releases further details in the Autumn. 

Is zero carbon by 2050 ambitious enough?

Will LPAs be able to set more ambitious requirements or will they be set 
nationally as previously proposed?

Should these be incorporated into the building regulations rather than 
planning and made mandatory?

Pillar Three - Planning for Infrastructure and Connected Places
Proposal 19 – Community Infrastructure Levy and S106 agreements to 
reformed

A new consolidated levy would replace CIL and S106.

This would be based on a fixed-proportion of development value above 
threshold – nationally set. National rate or area specific rates (still set 
nationally).

Levied at the point of occupation rather than on approval (as with CIL) 
A value-based minimum threshold will be set below which the levy is not 
charged, to prevent low viability development becoming unviable

The current CIL is based on the lowest common denominator so how would 
a nationally set tariff work in lower value areas? 

Concern whether sufficient funding would be collected to provide the 
necessary infrastructure in areas of lower development value. The 
Government should set out alternative means of infrastructure funding in 
areas with a housing requirement but no / low levy income. (e.g. new HIF)

Government propose that the infrastructure levy is levied at the point of 
occupation rather than CIL which is levied on commencement. Would this 
still create cashflow issues for the developer?

P
age 58



Councils will be able to borrow against projected future income from the 
levy to enable infrastructure to be provided when needed. 

An alternative option is proposed to enable the levy to take taken up at the 
discretion of local authorities with rates set locally. However, “there would 
be a stronger incentive for local authorities to introduce the new Levy, as 
they would not be able to use Section 106 planning obligations to secure 
infrastructure or affordable housing”

If S106s are removed, how do LPAs deal with other elements which S106 
agreements are also currently used to regulate i.e. transfer of land, 
management of land/SuDs etc?

More flexibility of spend once core infrastructure requirements are 
satisfied. Spending decisions may be politically contentious.

The ability to borrow against future income is good in principle but carries 
a risk that projected income is not realized (e.g. in the event of a housing 
market crash). 

In two tier local authority areas, it is not clear which authority would be 
able to borrow against future levy income. Currently, only district/borough 
councils can charge the levy but significant infrastructure provision is 
delivered by the county. Where would the risk of borrowing lie?

The alternative option proposed (discretionary levy uptake) is meaningless 
if S106 is still to be abolished. This would leave the Council with no means 
of supporting affordable housing or infrastructure. 

(For implications regarding affordable housing, please see Proposal 21)
Proposal 20 - The scope of the Infrastructure Levy could be extended
to capture changes of use through permitted development rights

This would capture changes of use which require planning permission, even 
where there is no additional floorspace, and for some permitted
development rights including office to residential conversions and new 
demolition and rebuild permitted development rights

Exemptions for self/custom build housing would remain

This can be supported

Proposal 21 - the reformed Infrastructure Levy should deliver affordable 
housing provision

We would need to ensure that delivery on site remains at the same level if 
not higher through new system. Concern about loss of affordable housing 
on smaller sites by raising thresholds. Thresholds have already been raised 

P
age 59



No S106 for affordable housing. The levy would replace the current means 
of contributions.

Aspiration to continue to deliver on-site affordable housing at current 
levels (around 50% currently nationally). This would be secured through in-
kind delivery where required by an authority. The form and tenure of such 
housing could be set by the local authority working with a provider.

A provider of affordable housing could purchase the dwelling at a discount 
from market rate, as now. However, rather than the discount being 
secured through Section 106 planning obligations, it would instead
be considered as in-kind delivery of the Infrastructure Levy. This would 
provide an incentive for on site delivery as the difference between
the price at which the unit was sold to the provider and the market price 
would be offset from the final cash liability to the Levy.

First Homes, which are sold by the developer direct to the customer at a 
discount to market price, would offset the discount against the cash 
liability.

In the event of a market fall, there could be scope to allow local authorities
to ‘flip’ a proportion of units back to market units which the developer can 
sell, if Levy liabilities are insufficient to cover the value secured through in-
kind contributions.

Local authorities could have an option to revert back to cash contributions 
if no provider was willing to buy the homes due to their poor quality.

An alternative option would be to create a ‘first refusal’ right for local 
authorities or any affordable housing provider acting on their behalf to buy 
up to a set proportion of on-site units at a discounted price, broadly 
equivalent to build costs. The proportion would be set nationally 

in previous reforms. 

In kind delivery on site? This would need to be made mandatory as few 
developers would want affordable housing on site.

If financial contribution in form of levy was taken this would add additional 
pressure to local authorities/ registered providers to deliver on alternative 
sites. This might be challenging to implement, particularly with competition 
from developers to purchase sites in areas of high demand
 
Ring-fencing for affordable housing is not mandatory. Difficult decisions to 
be made by the Council in setting funding priorities? (E.g. Affordable 
housing vs education vs health care…). Conflicting priorities may also arise 
between district/borough council and county councils.

In -kind delivery would have to be agreed at planning stage to enable 
appropriate mix to be agreed. Proposal suggests that location on site 
would be at developers discretion which would inevitable lead to them 
being grouped together rather than mixed throughout the site.  

We generally require affordable housing to be built to the Nationally 
Described Space Standards and with a specific bedspace criteria. This is 
normally higher than what is built on the open market. The proposal could 
jeopardise the delivery of good quality affordable housing.

Positive that cascade to financial contribution is included but this won’t 
stop developers reducing the standard of affordable homes. Some national 
developers in high demand areas would rather have financial contributions 
rather than on site provision. In Staffordshire Moorlands, on site seems to 
be a welcomed by developers given the uncertainly of the housing market. 

As with proposal 19, concern that the levy will not provide sufficient 
funding in low viability areas. 

P
age 60



Would local authorities have to agree FVA or agree development value? 
The Cost of having these independently assessed would be significant.

Proposal 22 - More freedom could be given to local authorities over
how they spend the Infrastructure Levy

As with CIL, up to 25% of income to be spent within neighbourhoods where 
it is raised.

In addition to infrastructure and affordable housing, income could be spent 
on “improving services or reducing council tax”

Local authorities to consider ring fencing for affordable housing.

Alternatively, the permitted uses of the Levy could remain focused on 
infrastructure and affordable housing

Flexibility is fine in principle but may lead to difficult decisions being made 
in terms of priorities and possible conflict with the county council (see 
proposal 19)

Proposal 23 - a comprehensive resources and skills strategy
for the planning sector will be rolled out to support the implementation 
of reforms

Training, including on digitization of planning system.

Planning fees continue to be set nationally but would support enforcement 
and the preparation of local plans/ design codes (currently funded by 
separate council budgets)

Reform of regulations to bring them up to date and reduce costs for local 
authorities

A new performance framework for improvements across all planning 
functions with early intervention if problems emerge with individual 
authorities.

This will be essential given the shift in emphasis to the preparation of, and 
application of, design codes in particular.

Greater flexibility of the use of planning fees could be positive but local 
plans and design codes funded by developers may lead to public mistrust in 
the process.

Regulatory reform is long over due. Covid-19 has already brought about 
more cost effective means of working which could be carried forward into 
future reforms e.g. less emphasis on the availability of paper copies of 
documents. 

P
age 61



Proposal 24 – strengthen enforcement powers and sanctions

More powers to address intentional unauthorised development, consider 
higher fines, and look to ways of supporting more enforcement activity.

Consideration of measures if the Environment Agency’s flood risk advice is 
not followed. 

It is noted that there are no consultation questions relating to this 
proposal.

Principle of stronger enforcement powers is to be welcomed. Concern 
regarding resourcing of this when emphasis within planning teams is 
always around meeting Government targets for applications. (See proposal 
6)

Proposal provides little detail.

P
age 62



Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2020/21

Date Item Contact Officer
3 June 2020
MEETING CANCELLED Cheadle Town Centre Projects

Leek Market Hall Update
22 July 2020

COVID-19 Pandemic – Reinstatement of Services and Economic 
Recovery (Deferred)

S Porru/A Patterson

Leek Market Hall – Call-in Report S Porru
16 September 2020

COVID-19 Pandemic – Reinstatement of Services and Economic 
Recovery

A Patterson/s Porru

Call-In of the Cabinet Decision to Dispose of Plot 12-15 Victoria 
Business Park

K Webster

18 November 2020
AES Performance Update A Stokes

27 January 2021

17 March 2021

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	7 Covid-19 Pandemic - Reinstatement of Services and Economic Recovery.
	8 Planning White Paper
	Appendix 1 - Changes to the Current Planning System
	Appendix 2 - Summary of Proposal and Possible Implications

	9 Work Programme
	11 Call-in of the Cabinet Decision in Relation to the Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria Business Park
	Appendix A - Cabinet Report 4th Aug 2020
	Appendix B - Call-In Procedure


